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R E M E M B E R I N G

Mr. Deepak Khaitan who was Chairman 

of Kilburn Engineering Limited and Vice 

Chairman of Williamson Magor Group 

passed away on 9th March, 2015. His 

untimely demise has created a vacuum 

which is hard to fill.

Mr. Deepak Khaitan took over as 

Chairman of Kilburn Engineering 

immediately after incorporation in 1987. 

He guided the Company to become 

the Pioneer in the country in providing 

critically customised drying solutions for 

diverse applications. He has also been 

instrumental in setting up few years back 

a World Class Manufacturing Complex 

for the Company in Saravali, near Thane, 

Maharashtra.

Mr. Khaitan was a natural leader. His 

powerful personality made an impact 

on everybody he met. He was a fearless 

businessman and a risk taker. He used 

to say, “Either you convince me or you 

be convinced – but when we leave the 

room, we chase the same idea.” 

Despite being an astute businessman, 

he always remained deeply entrenched 

in the daily working of the Company, 

caring for his team members, and 

extending a helping hand when needed. 

Mr. Khaitan never sought appreciation 

for these efforts. These qualities were an 

inherent part of who he was.

Other than business, Mr. Khaitan was 

very enthusiastic about sports, especially 

golf and horseracing.

He truly was, in every measure, a leader 

to reckon with.

May his soul rest in peace.

In memory of Late Deepak Khaitan

(9th May, 1955 - 9th March, 2015)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015

The Directors of your Company are pleased to present the 27th Annual Report and Audited Statement of Accounts for 
the financial year ended 31st March, 2015.

FINANCIAL RESULTS (` In Lacs)

Year ended
31st March, 

2015

Year ended
31st March, 

2014
Revenue from Operations 12,069 11,651
Profit before tax 582 326
Tax Expenses 168 87
Profit after tax 414 239
Balance brought forward from previous year 5,405 5,166
Amount available for appropriation
(After adjustment of depreciation of ` 10.87 lacs
on tangible fixed assets with Nil residual life)

5,807 5,405

Less: Appropriations - -
Balance carried forward to Balance Sheet 5,807 5,405

DIVIDEND

Board of Directors did not recommend dividend for the current year, due to inadequate profits.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS 2014-15 

As you are aware your Company is primarily engaged in designing, manufacturing and commissioning customized 
equipment/ systems for diverse applications. The company registered marginal growth in revenue by 3% during the 
year under review, due to difficult economic environment.

ORDER BOOK

An improved macro economic environment led to better inflow of Process Equipment related customized orders 
which normally involve 8 to 18 months execution period. During 2014-15, following good critically customized 
equipments orders have been executed and/ or currently under execution.

 Export Orders

• For Paddle Dryers and Coolers from a reputed overseas manufacturer of lime and dolime

 Domestic Orders

• For Rotary Calciner having 480 TPD capacity for Reputed Soda Ash manufacturer.

• For Nuclear Reactor’s Ventilation project from a reputed infrastructure Company.

• For Rotary Dryers, Coolers, Granulators and Lump Crushers from a reputed fertilizer company

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Your company operates primarily in two divisions viz. Process Equipment and Food Processing Equipment. The future 
outlook based on the expected order inflow appears to be encouraging.  A detailed review of the operations of each 
division is incorporated in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report in Annexure A which forms part of this 
Report.

AUDIT REPORT

In respect of the qualification in the Auditors’ Report regarding partial provision for diminution in the value of 
investment in equity shares of Mcnally Bharat Engineering Company Limited, the Company is of the opinion that the 
diminution in market value of these shares is temporary and is a result of general slowdown in the economy.

The Directors of your Company have on a conservative basis made a provision during the year under review to cover 
the diminution in the value of the investments. 

The Company is also filing Form B with the stock exchanges as required by the SEBI Circular No. CIR. CFD/
DIL/7/2012 Dated August 13, 2012.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provision of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of your Company 
hereby confirms :

1) that in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along 
with proper explanation relating to material departure;

2) that the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at the end of the financial year and of the Profit and Loss of the Company for the period;

3) that the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

4) that the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

5) the directors, had laid down internal financial  controls to be followed by the company and that such internal 
financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

6) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the  provisions of all applicable laws and 
that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

A separate report on Management Discussion & Analysis is appended to this Annual Report as Annexure “I” and 
forms part of this Director’s Report;

MATERIAL CHANGES & COMMITMENTS

There are no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company, between the end 
of the financial year of the Company i.e. March 31, 2015 and the date of this Report.

EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 

Your Company believes employees are its key strengths. Your Board would like to place on record its appreciation of 
employees for their contribution to the business. 

During 2014 – 15, Saravali factory witnessed labour unrest in the second half as workmen raised some demands 
outside the purview of settlement in October 2013 entered into between workmen and your Company for four 
years period upto October 2017.  In May 2015, settlement of the issues of workmen has been made and industrial 
relations continue to be cordial and amicable.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 
OUTGO

The information relating to Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and 
Outgo as required to be disclosed pursuant to Section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with The 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended, is appended to this Annual Report as Annexure “II” and forms part 
of this Directors’ Report.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM WITH RESPECT TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company has a comprehensive system of internal control to safeguard the Company’s assets against any loss 
from unauthorized use and ensure proper authorization of financial transactions.

The Company has internal control systems commensurate with the size and nature of the business and has experienced 
personnel positioned adequately in the organization to ensure internal control processes and compliances. The 
Company takes abundant care in designing, reviewing and monitoring regularly the working of inter control systems 
and their compliances for all important financial internal control processes. The Audit findings are reported on 
quarterly basis to the Audit Committee of the Board headed by a Non-executive Independent Director.

The Company has been further strengthening the internal control system by implementation robust ERP systems 
based on FACT platform. This ensures high degree of systems based checks and controls.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In compliance with revised Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, a detailed Report on Corporate Governance is 
enclosed as a part of this Annual Report. The report has details of formal evaluation by the Board of its own 
performance, its committees and individual directors. A certificate from a Practicing Company Secretary regarding 
compliance of the condition of Corporate Governance as stipulated under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, is 
appended as Annexure – III and forms part of this Directors’ Report.
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DIRECTORS  

Mr. Supriya Mukherjee has been appointed as Managing Director for a period of three years effective April 1, 2014 
at the 26th Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Mr. S. R. Dasgupta, Mr. Padam Kumar Khaitan, Mr. Manmohan Singh and Mr. Gobind Saraf, who have been Directors 
of the Company and also been Independent Directors of the Company pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement 
with the Stock Exchanges, were appointed as Independent Directors for a period of five consecutive years at the 
26th Annual General Meeting of the Company, held on September 30, 2014 in terms of Section 149 and other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

With profound grief, we inform the sad demise of our beloved chairman, Mr. Deepak Khaitan, Chairman on 9th March, 
2015 after prolonged illness. The Board places on record its profound sorrow on the loss of Mr. Deepak Khaitan and 
also its deep appreciation of the valuable contributions made by him during his long association with the Company.

Board of directors appointed Mrs. Priya Saran Chaudhri as additional director effective 14th November, 2014 and 
Mr. Aditya Khaitan as additional director (Chairman of the Board) effective 31st March, 2015.  Both the directors 
hold office upto the ensuing Annual General Meeting and their appointment is proposed as regular director of the 
company.

Mr. Amritanshu Khaitan, director retires by rotation pursuant to Section 152 of The Companies Act, 2013 and Article 
86 of Articles of Association of the Company at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company and being 
eligible, offer himself for re-appointment.

DECLARATIONS BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Necessary declarations from all the Independent Directors of the Company, confirming that they meet the criteria of 
independence as prescribed, have been received.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

During the year 2014 – 15, following officials continued as Key Managerial Personnel, pursuant to section 203 of The 
Companies Act, 2013 :

i. Mr. Supriya Mukherjee, Managing Director

ii. Mr. Anjaneyan Suresh, Chief Financial Officer

iii. Mr. Arvind Bajoria, Company Secretary

HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

Your Company has no holding or subsidiary company.  Williamson Magor & Company Limited is holding 4319043 
equity shares constituting 32.58% of total shareholding of the Company, so it is an associate company within the 
meaning of section 2 (6) of The Companies Act, 2013.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Your Board has developed and approved a Related Party Transactions Policy for purposes of identification and 
monitoring of related party transactions and the same is uploaded on the Company’s website.

Your Company has not entered into any contracts/arrangements with related parties as required under Section 
188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, during the year under review. However there are contracts/arrangements 
with related parties as defined by the said Act, executed prior to April 1, 2014 and the Statement in Form AOC -2 
containing the details of the Related Party Transactions pertaining to such ongoing contracts forms a part of this 
Report as Annexure .

MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION

Details of the ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median employee’s remuneration and other details as 
required pursuant to Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014 are as per annexure V. 

Mr. Supriya Mukherjee, Managing Director is the only executive director in receipt of remuneration, and its details 
are in the corporate governance report and annexure VII attached to this directors’ report.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s Deloitte Haskins & Sells (Firm’s Registration No. : 117364W ), Statutory Auditors of the Company hold the 
appointment for a term of three years upto 2017 and their appointment is subject to ratification by members at 
the ensuing Annual General Meeting.  They have confirmed their eligibility to the effect that their re-appointment, 
if made, would be within the prescribed limits under the Act and that they are not disqualified for continuation as 
Stautory Auditors.
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VIGIL MECHANISM 

The Company has formulated a Whistle Blower Policy to establish a vigil mechanism for Directors and employees of 
the Company to report concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the company’s 
code of conduct or ethics policy. The VIGIL MECHANISM is available on the website of Company.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company has formulated a Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and employees of 
the Company to ensure that adequate remuneration paid to attract, retain and motivate the senior management 
employees to run the company successfully. The Policy is available on the website of the Company and also annexed 
herewith (Annexure IV).

RISK MANAGEMENT

Directors have adopted risk management policy to identify the risks involved in all activities of the Company, set up 
adequate controls to timely mitigate the risks.

SOCIAL CONTRIBUTION

The Company continues to support social causes and has, like in the previous years, made contributions for 
underprivileged people. The Company will continue to support social projects that are consistent with the policy.  

COST AUDITOR

Pursuant to section 148 of The Companies Act, 2013, Board of Directors in their meeting held on 28th May, 2015 
reappointed M/s. Sabyasachi & Co., Cost Accountants as Cost Auditor for conducting the audit of the cost accounting 
records of the company for the financial year 2015-16. The remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the said 
year is being placed for ratification by the Members at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, Secretarial Audit Report by M/s. Dhrumil M. Shah & Co., 
Practicing Company Secretaries is annexed to the report.

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN

The extract of the annual return in Form No. MGT – 9, as per annexure - forms part of the Board’s report.

OTHER DISCLOSURES

During the year under review:

a.  There were no cases filed pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 
and Redressal) Act, 2013.

b.  Your Company has not accepted any deposit from the public falling within the ambit of Section 73 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

c.  There were no significant or material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the 
going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

COLLABORATORS

The Directors place on record its sincere appreciation to all its Collaborators for extending their valuable support 
and co-operation.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors wish to convey their appreciation to their Customers, Bankers, Dealers, Suppliers, Stock Exchanges, 
Government and all other Stakeholders for the excellent assistance and cooperation. The Directors’ also thank all 
the employees of the Company for their valuable service and support during the year.

For and on behalf of the Board

Kolkata Aditya Khaitan

Date: May 28, 2015 Chairman 
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Annexure - I
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

1. ECONOMIC OVERVIEW :

 Your Company is primarily engaged in designing, manufacturing and commissioning customized equipment/ 
systems for critical applications in several industrial sectors viz. Chemical including Soda Ash, Carbon Black, 
Steel, Nuclear Power, Petrochemical and Food Processing etc. In the past, the Company had to face inadequate 
& irregular order inflow as several process equipment orders were either postponed and / or deferred in view of 
long recessionary trend in capital goods sector. The Company since last two years have started securing good 
quality & value added orders involving long delivery period. Several such orders which were kept on hold for 
several reasons including Government clearances are likely to materialise in the current year.

2. BUSINESS / INDUSTRY OVERVIEW  :

 Based on the orders in hand and expected orders during the remaining period of the current fiscal, the Company 
is expected to post improved performance in the current as also in the following year.  New policy initiatives 
by the Government with particular focus on infrastructure are expected to result in better order inflows to your 
Company  from several Industries, viz Chemical,  Fertilizer, Steel etc.

3. CURRENT & FUTURE BUSINESS OUTLOOK :

 As you are aware your Company’s business is primarily focused in two segments viz. Process Equipment and 
Food Process Equipment.  The outlook in respect of these Product Groups is detailed below :

 a) Process Equipment :

  Your Company continued to focus on critically customized process equipment. Your Company has as 
a policy decided to accept orders only for value added critically customized orders so that margins 
are maintained and competition restricted. The company has been able to secure orders from major 
players of the respective industry and with the Government taking initiative to accelerate investments in 
manufacturing sectors; your company expects to get good quality orders of relatively high value in the 
current & following years.

  Your Company is on the verge of completing its execution of some large export/ domestic orders, viz., 
a) Carbon Black Pelletizing & Drying Plant with Flue Gas DeNox System (export), b) Paddle Dryers and 
Paddle Coolers for fine Coal in a large Lime & Dolomite manufacturing Company (export),  c) Rotary 
Drums and Fans for a new DAP/NPK Fertilizer Project, d) Rotary Drum Steam Tube type Calciner Package 
for Soda Ash application. These executions should improve the Company’s order book in future for such 
technology based, value added large systems from other Companies. The Company’s dryers for coke 
& iron-ore drying for steel industry are in the final stages of manufacturing and are expected to be 
commissioned during 2nd quarter of the current fiscal. The commissioning of these dryers will enhance 
usage of the Company’s products in steel industry. This is the first time in the country your Company has 
provided Drying Solution for iron-ore.

  Your Company is a preferred supplier of IUG for installation on ONGC offshore platforms. ONGC has 
embarked on setting new platform as also revamping of the existing platforms in the current year. This 
will involve a number of IUG System & Kilburn has a good chance of securing orders for such IUG.

  The Company has developed one of its products for Sludge Drying.  This application significantly reduces 
problems of Sludge/ waste disposal in several industries like textile, chemical, pharmaceutical etc.  Your 
Company has received a number of orders for this product from several Companies. These orders have 
been executed / are under execution. This segment involving small value dryers will have immense 
business potential in terms of volume.

  Due to the growing demand particularly in Soda Ash Industry, many of the reputed companies have 
embarked on capacity expansion. As your Company has been a preferred supplier for such large drying 
systems to the industry, your company is expected to secure orders from these companies during   
2015-16. The Company has already secured orders amounting to ` 31 Crore in last two months from this 
industry.

  The Company’s pilot plants set up in Saravali complex provide testing facilities to finalize the ideal drying 
solution for customers’ specific applications. Some orders have been finalized by customers based on the 
test results in pilot plants. Several trials for new applications are in the pipeline.  
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  Since September 2014 till middle of this month, the Company’s execution suffered primarily for some 
unexpected & unwarranted labour issues & gave rise to delays in execution. The issues have recently been 
settled & the Company expects to enhance Saravali capacity utilisation considerably in the remaining 
period of 2015-16 both by way of improved productivity as also with additional in-house sub-contracting 
arrangement. The Company’s policy to resort to outside sub-contracting only for unavoidable cases 
including additional workload beyond Saravali capacity will be strictly followed as outside sub-contracting 
not only erodes the Company’s margin but also affects the timeline of delivery.

  Your Company is continuing to focus on expanding its presence in the export market with the following 
initiatives:

   New Applications for the Companies products
    Expanding geographical areas
    Appointment of country wise agents for Companies products
    Increasing visibility of your Company by participating in technical seminars/ exhibitions both within 

India and abroad.

 b) Food Process Equipment

  Your Company continues to be a leader in the Tea Dryer industry and is expanding its reach in countries 
like South Africa, Uganda, Kenya, Vietnam, Nepal, Bangladesh, Sri Lanka, Indonesia, etc.  In view of 
production constraints, the Company’s despatches of tea dryer suffered badly in 2014-15. In 2015-16, 
this segment is expected to fare better as compared to 2014-15.

  In the last two years R & D department of your Company has been engaged in developing a mechanized 
Continuous Withering System for Tea Industry. This system has been subsequently installed in a 
Tea Estate and it has performed quite well. The product has been commercially launched in India,  
Sri Lanka and Bangladesh during April / May 2015.  This system significantly reduces manpower as also 
space requirement in Tea Factories. It also enhances the quality of made tea which in turn attracts higher 
price realization.

  As major customers for this segment are in Eastern India, the Company plans to move manufacturing of 
Food Processing equipment to the East in a phased manner.

4.  RISKS CHALLENGES AND THREATS :

  Risks Mitigation

 Infringement of Intellectual property Rights (IPRs) a)  The patent applications for various products of the 
Company are under examination by the Patent’s 
Office under the Patents Act 1956.

b)  Constant innovation of the Companies products to 
deter the infringement of the IPR by unscrupulous 
competitors.

Business Risk  

 The primary risk faced by your Company comes 
from increased competition in various segments 
due to entry of large number of domestic and 
international players. 

 As the Company’s products are capital goods in 
nature, cyclical dip in sales is an inherent risk in its 
business

Your Company is providing a total system to customers 
against products by some competitors which mitigate 
the risk from competition. However, the threat from 
Chinese Manufacturers continues.

Your Company is continuously developing several new 
products and expanding geographically which helps to 
bridge dip in sales of any of established products.

 Long execution periods expose your Company to 
the risk of price variations. 

Suitable contracts with vendors where price & credit 
period are matched with the buyers terms.

 As significant portion of the Companies sales is 
export the Company also faces the risk of currency 
fluctuations.

Your Company has a policy of hedging currency 
exposures to optimum levels.



Report & Accounts 2014 - 2015

8

5. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS & THEIR ADEQUACY :

 Your Company has established an ERP system in its commercial departments. Efforts are on to identify an 
ERP System for technical departments which will take care of all requirements from Drawing to Despatch.  
Implementation of such a system will greatly enhance the internal controls in the respective departments.

6. HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT :

 Your Company has embarked on a massive recruitment drive which will help in smooth and efficient execution 
of projects. Filling up of vacancies is expected to take care of the shortcomings in execution faced by the 
Company.

 As your company has earned reputation as supplier of quality products, the company apart from strengthening 
its setup in Saravali Complex, has developed and strengthened its outside vendor base to ensure quality and 
timely supplies of requirements.

 A 4 year effective wage settlement was entered into with the workmen in October 2013. In spite of existence 
of such settlement, the workmen resorted to go slow and lesser productivity from September 2013. After 
protracted negotiations, a settlement was arrived at during May 2015 with the workmen which envisaged 
increased productivity along with an increase in wages. A supplementary agreement is to be signed shortly. 
This has delayed deliveries of some projects.

7. GENTLE WORD OF CAUTION

 Some of the statements in this management discussion and analysis report describing the Companies objectives, 
projections, estimates and expectations maybe ‘Forward Looking Statements’ within the meaning of applicable 
laws and regulations. Actual results might differ substantially or materially from those expressed or implied. 
Important developments that could affect the Company’s operations include a downtrend in industry, significant 
changes in political and economic environment in India, tax laws, foreign exchange fluctuation, custom duties, 
litigations and labour relations.

For and on behalf of the Board

Kolkata Aditya Khaitan

Date: May 28, 2015 Chairman 

Annexure - II

INFORMATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014 AND 
FORMING PART OF THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015.

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY -

 a) steps taken or impact on conservation of energy :

  i. utilization of invertor based welding machines to reduce the energy consumption

  ii. active monitoring of utilization of energy to reduce wastage

 b) Steps taken by company for utilizing alternate sources of energy: 

  - Nil -

 c) Capital investment on energy conservation equipments :

  Currently, company is finalizing proposal for installation of LED lights in works and other offices to minimize 
the utilization of energy for lighting.

  Impact of measures being undertaken can be identified after implementation.

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION –

 (i)  Efforts made towards technology absorption;
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  a)  Innovation in the field of continuous paddle drying technology for vacuum application.

  b) Development of Continuous Withering Machine (CWS), which will enable the company to provide 
comprehensive drying solutions for the tea industry. 

 We believe that right technology is the key element in success of our products, so we are always looking for 
new techniques and technologies to upgrade our products and provide innovative solutions.

 (ii)  Benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import 
substitution;

  Innovation in the field of continuous paddle drying technology for vacuum application has reduced utility 
requirement and efficient collection of solvent.

 (iii)  Information regarding imported technology (imported during the last three years)  - 

  a. The details of technology imported –  as following 

   - Technology provided by M/s. Carrier Vibrating Equipment Inc., USA to the Company for making 
coke dryer which helps in making steel in blast furnace with considerable reduction in coke and 
vibratory fluid bed dryer for drying of iron ore.

   - Similarly M/s. Nara Machinery Company Limited, Japan has been providing technology for 
Paddle Dryer, which has been very well recognized in the market

  b. The year of import  -   The above technologies are being used by the Company for several years in 
the past.

  c. Whether the technology been fully absorbed  -  Yes

  d. If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof  - N/A

 (iv)  Expenditure incurred on Research and Development:

  Expenditure on R&D:

  a) Capital    : -

  b) Recurring   : ` 59.57 Lacs

  c) Total     : ` 59.57 Lacs

  d) Total R&D expenditure as a  : 0.48

         percentage of total turnover

C. Foreign exchange earnings and outgo:

 a) Activities relating to exports, initiative taken to increase exports, development of new export markets for 
products and services and export plans:

  The Company’s executives visited prospective customers overseas. The Company also actively participated 
in international trade fairs to explore available opportunities.

 b) Total foreign exchange used and earned:

  Total foreign exchange used     -       ` 464.43 Lacs

  Total foreign exchange earned   -    ` 5486.70 Lacs

For and on behalf of the Board

Kolkata Aditya Khaitan

Date: May 28, 2015 Chairman 
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Annexure - III

FORM NO. AOC-2

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms-
length transactions under third proviso thereto

(Pursuant to Section 134 (3) (h) of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis / at arm’s length basis

The Company has not entered into any contracts/arrangements with related parties as required under Section 
188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), during the year under review. Prior to the commencement of the said 
Section, the Company had, under the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, entered into contracts / 
arrangements with certain related parties as defined under Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 and referred 
to in Section 188 (1) of the Act.

The said contracts/arrangements do not require fresh approval under Section 188 till expiry / modification of the 
said contracts / arrangements and the transactions pertaining to such contracts/arrangements continued in the 
current financial year ended March 31, 2015.

Accordingly, arms-length basis is not applicable / ascertainable at this stage as the agreements were executed prior 
to the enforcement of the said Section. The said transactions are in the ordinary course of business in terms of the 
Act, for the operational and administrative benefits of the Company.

Name of Party Relationship Nature of 
transaction

Duration Salient terms 
including 

value

(` Lakhs)

Williamson Magor and Company 
Limited

Associate 
company

Payment of 
corporate 
consultancy 
charges

April 1, 2014 to 
March 31, 2015

24.00

Williamson Magor and Company 
Limited

Associate 
Company

Payment of Rent 
monthly 

- do - 16.94

Williamson Magor and Company Limited Associate 
Company

Reimbursement 
of electricity 
charges

 - do - 5.95

 There were no material contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into by the Company with related 
parties which may have a potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large.

For and on behalf of the Board

Kolkata Aditya Khaitan

Date: May 28, 2015 Chairman 
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Annexure – IV
Remuneration Policy

The Remuneration Policy of Kilburn Engineering Ltd (the “Company”) is designed to attract, motivate and retain 
manpower in a competitive and international market. The policy reflects the Company’s objectives for good corporate 
governance as well as sustained long-term value creation for shareholders.

The Remuneration Policy applies to the Company’s senior management, including its Key Managerial Persons (KMPs) 
and Board of Directors.

GUIDING PRINCIPLES

The Guiding Principle is that the remuneration and other terms of employment shall be competitive in order to 
ensure that the Company can attract and retain competent executives.

-  The Remuneration Policy for executives reflects the overriding remuneration philosophy and principles of 
Company. When determining the remuneration policy and arrangements for Whole time Directors / KMPs, 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, constituted in accordance with Section 178 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, considers parity with peers and employment conditions elsewhere in the competitive market to 
ensure that pay structures are appropriately aligned and that levels of remuneration remain appropriate in this 
context.

-  The Committee while designing the remuneration package considers the level and composition of remuneration 
to be reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate the person to ensure the quality required to run 
the company successfully.

-  The Nomination and Remuneration Committee while considering a remuneration package must ensure a direct 
relationship with the Key Result Areas and individual achievements considering short as well as long term 
performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its goals.

-  The Committee considers that a successful remuneration policy must ensure that a significant part of the 
remuneration package is linked to the achievement of corporate performance targets and a strong alignment 
of interest with stakeholders.

The Remuneration policy is guided by a common reward framework and set of principles and objectives as envisaged 
under section 178 of the Companies Act 2013 and Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 
inter-alia principles pertaining to determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of the Directors, 
integrity, etc. The main objectives are –

Attract and retain: Remuneration packages are designed to attract high-calibre executives in a competitive global 
market and remunerate executives fairly and responsibly. The remuneration shall be competitive and based on the 
individual responsibilities and performance.

Motivate and reward: Remuneration is designed to motivate delivery of our key business strategies, create a 
strong performance-orientated environment and reward achievement of meaningful short and long-term targets.

The principal terms of non-monetary benefits: The Executives will also be entitled to customary non-monetary 
benefits such as Company Cars, Telephones/Mobiles, Health care facilities, etc. In addition thereto, in specific cases, 
particularly at the Unit levels, company may also provide housing and other benefits.

EXECUTIVE REMUNERATION – SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive remuneration is proposed by the Committee and subsequently approved by the Board of Directors and 
further by the shareholders and Central Government as per legal requirements. Executive remuneration is evaluated 
annually against performance.

Benchmarking is done with the help of reports generated by / through reputed manpower recruitment consultancies. 
In determining remuneration packages, the Committee may consult with the Chairman/ Managing Director and 
Independent Directors as well, as appropriate. Total remuneration shall include of following: 
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 -  A fixed base salary, set at a level aimed at attracting and retaining executives with professional and 
personal competencies required to drive the Company’s performance.

 -  Other allowances / incentives, based on the work profile / achievement of individuals as per business 
targets, duly approved by the Managing Director.

 -  Pension / ESI contributions, made in accordance with applicable laws and employment agreements.

Loyalty / Belongingness to Company, to be achieved by aligning the rewards and recognitions for longer 
association of the employees with the organization and encouraging Referrals as one of the sources of recruitment 
to strengthen the company work-force.  Necessary steps to be taken to introduce it in the Company.

Working Atmosphere at the workplace, company committed to provide good working atmosphere conducive to 
efficient and effective functioning of the employees with excellent culture and good inter-personal relationship within 
the organization as well as with external business associates.

Female employees, HR policy of the company gives fair chance to males as well as females in employment and 
prefers to maintain the reasonable balance. It also provides requisite protection to female employees through 
effective implementation of HR Policies to safeguard against Sexual Harassment, etc.

Severance payments in accordance with termination clauses in employment agreements. Severance payments 
shall comply with the legal framework.

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION

Information on the total remuneration of members of the Company’s Board of Directors, Executive Board of 
Management and senior management may be disclosed in the Company’s annual financial statements. This includes 
any deferred payments and extraordinary contracts during the preceding financial year.

APPROVAL OF THE REMUNERATION POLICY

This Remuneration Policy shall apply to all future employment agreements with members of Company’s Senior 
Management including Key Managerial Person and Board of Directors.

The Remuneration Policy is binding for the Board of Directors. In other respects, the Remuneration Policy shall be 
of guidance for the Board and shall be modified /revised with the consent of the Nomination and Remuneration 
committee and Board of Directors of the company from time to time as may be required. Any departure from the 
policy shall be recorded and reasoned in the Board’s minutes.

DISSEMINATION

The Company’s Remuneration Policy shall be published on its website.

For and on behalf of the Board

Kolkata Aditya Khaitan

Date: May 28, 2015 Chairman 
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Annexure – V
REMUNERATION AND OTHER SPECIFIED PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Information pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with Rule 5 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees and other details in 
terms of Section 197 (12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014:

Sr. 
no.

Requirements Disclosure

1 The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median 
remuneration of the employees for the financial year

Managing Director
Mr. Supriya Mukherjee 79.18 : 1
Non Executive Directors
Mr. Deepak Khaitan 0.19 : 1
Mr. Amritanshu Khaitan 0.25 : 1 
Mr. Manmohan Singh 0.63 : 1
Mr. Subir Ranjan Dasgupta 0.44 : 1
Mr. Padam Kumar Khaitan 0.44 : 1
Mr. Gobind Saraf 0.81 : 1
Mrs. Priya Saran Chaudhri 0.06 : 1
Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors consists of 
Sitting Fees received for attending Board/Committee 
Meetings for 2014-15

2 The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, CFO, 
CEO, CS in the financial year

No increment was made in the salary of any 
director, CFO or CS during the year

3 The percentage increase in the median remuneration of 
employees in the financial year

8.01% increase in the median remuneration of 
workmen

4 The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the 
Company     

344 employees were on the rolls of company as 
on March 31, 2015.

5 The explanation on the relationship between average increase 
in remuneration and Company performance

During 2014-15, net profit of Company 
increased by 73% (approx.). The remuneration 
of managerial personnel was not increased 
during the year and wage revision of workmen 
was  as per agreement between company and 
trade union signed in October, 2013.

6 Comparison of the remuneration of the Key Managerial 
Personnel against the performance of the Company

Total remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel 
is 29.83% of the Profit Before Tax ( PBT ) for the 
year 2014 – 15.

7 Variations in the market capitalisation of the Company, price 
earnings ratio as at the closing date of the current FY and 
previous FY and percentage increase over decrease in the 
market quotations of the shares of the Company in comparison 
to the rate at which the Company came out with the last public 
offer

The Market capitalization of the Company has 
increased from Rs 27.31 crores as on March 31, 
2014 to Rs. 71.98 crores as of March 31, 2015. 
Over the same period, the price to earnings 
ratio moved from 11.44 to 17.40. The stock 
price of the Company as at March 31, 2015 has 
increased by 117% to Rs. 54.30 over the last 
offering of equivalent equity shares of Rs.10/- 
each on rights basis in March, 2006 at an issue 
price of Rs.25/- share.

8 Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of 
employees other than the managerial personnel in the last 
financial year and its comparison with the percentile in the 
managerial remuneration and justification thereof.

Average salary of workmen increased by 9.03 
% during the year 2014 – 15 and there was 
no increase in the remuneration of managerial 
personnel during the year.  The wage revision 
was made as per agreement between company 
and trade union signed in October, 2013.

9 Comparison of the each remuneration of the Key Managerial 
Personnel against the performance of the Company

Remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel 
was 29.83% of the Profit Before Tax (PBT) 
for the year 2014 – 15.  MD (21.76% ), CFO      
(6.37 %) and CS (1.70%)

10 The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration 
availed by the directors.

There is no variable component of remuneration 
of directors.
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Sr. 
no.

Requirements Disclosure

11 The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid directors 
to that of the employees who are not directors but receive 
remuneration in excess of the highest paid director during the 
year

No employee in the company is paid remuneration 
higher than the Managing Director.

12 Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration 
policy of the Company

Yes, affirmed

For and on behalf of the Board

Kolkata Aditya Khaitan

Date: May 28, 2015 Chairman 

Annexure - VI
FORM NO MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014

To,

The Members,

KILBURN ENGINEERING LTD

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 
good corporate practices by KILBURN ENGINEERING LTD (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit 
was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during 
the financial year ended on March 31, 2015 generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder 
and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the 
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2015 according to the provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (“FEMA”) and the rules and regulations made there under to the 
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings. 

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 
(‘SEBI Act’):-

 a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 
2011;

 b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;

 c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2009;

 d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase 
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; - Not Applicable for this financial year
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 e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; - Not 
Applicable for this financial year

 f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an  Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; - Not Applicable to the Company

 g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; - Not Applicable 
for this financial year and

 h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; - Not Applicable 
for this financial year

vi. Other applicable laws to the Company as per the representation made by the Management.

 I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

 i. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

 ii. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited and The Calcutta Stock Exchange 
Limited.

 During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

 I further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive, 
Non-Executive and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took 
place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

 Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule Board and Committee Meetings, agenda and detailed notes 
on agenda were sent adequately in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information 
and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

 Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views, if any, are captured and recorded as 
part of the minutes. 

 I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size 
and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines.

 I further report that during the audit period;

 (i) The company had passed the Special Resolution on dated 14th October, 2014 by way of postal ballot under 
section 180 (1) (c) of the Act for increasing the borrowing limit upto Rs. 300 Crores and Section 180 (1) (a) 
of the Act for approval of creation of charges to the extent of the aforesaid borrowing limits.  

 (ii) The company had passed the Special Resolution under Section 186 of the Act, on dated 14th October, 2014 
for approval of Investment, giving loan, to give guarantee and to provide security in connection with a loan 
to any company not exceeding Rs. 200 Crores.  

 (iii) The company has adopted new set of its Articles of Association pursuant to provisions of New Companies 
Act, 2013 by way of Special Resolution dated 14th October, 2014

 (iv) The remuneration of Mr. Supriya Mukherjee, Managing Director was approved by the members by way of 
a special resolution passed at the Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) held on 30th September, 2014. Due to 
inadequate profits during the current year, the total managerial remuneration of Rs. 126.68 lacs (excluding 
perquisites) is in excess of the limits specified under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 which is 
subject to the Central Government’s approval.

 For Dhrumil M Shah & Co.

Place: Mumbai Dhrumil M Shah
Date: 28th May, 2015 Company Secretary
 CP 8978; FCS 8021

This Report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of 
this report.
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Annexure A
To,

The Members,

KILBURN ENGINEERING LTD

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

1) Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. My responsibility is 
to express an opinion on these Secretarial Records based on my audit.

2) I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 
the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure 
that correct facts are reflected in the Secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices, I followed 
provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3) I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the 
Company.

4) Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of Laws, Rules and 
Regulations and happening of events etc.

5) The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations, Standards is the 
responsibility of the Management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6) The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency 
or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

 For Dhrumil M Shah & Co.

Place: Mumbai Dhrumil M Shah
Date: 28th May, 2015 Company Secretary
 CP 8978; FCS 8021

Annexure - VII
Form No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the financial year ended on March 31, 2015

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies  
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

i) CIN: L24232WB1987PLC042956

ii) Registration Date  : 07-09-1987

iii) Name of the Company  : Kilburn Engineering Limited

iv) Category /  : Public Company
 Sub-Category of the Company   Limited by shares

v) Address of the Registered office  : 3rd Floor, Four Mangoe Lane,
 and contact details   Surendra Mohan Ghosh Sarani, Kolkata – 700 001
     Tel: +91 -33- 2231 3337
     Fax:+91 -33- 2231 4768

vi) Whether listed company  : Yes (Listed on BSE  & CSE)

vii) Name, Address and Contact details  : Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited
 of Registrar and Transfer Agent,   6, Mangoe Lane, 2nd Floor, Surendra Mohan Ghosh Sarani,
 if any   Kolkata – 700 001
     Tel. : +91 -33- 2243 5809 / 5029; Fax: +91 -33- 2248 4787
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II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

 All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company

S. no. Name and Description of Main Products/ 
Services

NIC Code of the Product 
/ Service

%age to total 
turnover

1 Industrial Machinery / Dryer / Cooler 84193900 94.37 %

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

 Holding Company : Nil

 Subsidiary Company : Nil

 Associate Company : Williamson Magor & Company Limited 

    (holding 32.58% of total share capital of Kilburn Engineering Limited )

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL BREAKUP AS PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL EQUITY)

i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of 
Shareholders

 

No of Shares held at the  beginning of the 
year [As on 01-April-2014]

No of Shares held at the end of the year 
[As on 31-March-2015]

% 
change 
during 

the 
Year 

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares

A. Promoters          

(1) Indian          

a) Individual/ 
HUF

16600 1 16601 0.13 17000 201 17201 0.13 3.61

b) Central 
Govt

         

c) State 
Govt(s)

         

d) Bodies 
Corp.

7550537 0 7550537 56.96 7550537 0 7550537 56.96 0.00

e) Banks/FI          

f) Any other          

Sub-total (A)
(1)

7567137 1 7567138 57.09 7567537 201 7567738 57.09 0.01

(2) Foreign          

a) NRIs - 
Individuals

         

b) Other - 
Individuals

         

c) Bodies Corp.          

d) Banks/FI          

e) Any other          

Sub-total (A)
(2)

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

Total 
shareholding 
of Promoter 
(A)=(A)
(1)+(A)(2)

7567137 1 7567138 57.09 7567537 201 7567738 57.09 0.01
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Category of 
Shareholders

 

No of Shares held at the  beginning of the 
year [As on 01-April-2014]

No of Shares held at the end of the year 
[As on 31-March-2015]

% 
change 
during 

the 
Year 

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares

B. Public 
Shareholding

         

1. Institutions          

a) Mutual 
Funds

0 900 900 0.01 0 900 900 0.01 0.00

b) Banks/FI 1100 700 1800 0.01 1100 700 1800 0.01 0.00

c) Central Govt          

d) State 
Govt(s)

         

e) Venture 
Capital Funds

         

f) Insurance 
Companies

         

g) FIIs          

h) Foreign 
Venture 
Capital Funds

         

i) Others 
(specify)

         

Sub-total(B)
(1):-

1100 1600 2700 0.02 1100 1600 2700 0.02 0.00

2. Non-
Institutions

         

a) Bodies 
Corp.

         

i) Indian 657928 4000 661928 4.99 794618 4000 798618 6.02 20.65

ii) Overseas          

b) Individuals          

i) Individual 
shareholders 
holding 
nominal share 
capital upto 
Rs. 1 lakh

2871054 453680 3324734 25.08 2774832 440360 3215192 24.26 -3.29

ii) Individual 
shareholders 
holding 
nominal share 
capital in 
excess of  Rs. 
1 lakh

1613735 0 1613735 12.17 1364428 0 1364428 10.29 -15.45

c) Others 
(Specify)

         

Non Resident 
Indians

78614 500 79114 0.60 62262 500 62762 0.47 -20.67

Qualified 
Foreign 
Investor
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Category of 
Shareholders

 

No of Shares held at the  beginning of the 
year [As on 01-April-2014]

No of Shares held at the end of the year 
[As on 31-March-2015]

% 
change 
during 

the 
Year 

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares

Custodian 
of Enemy 
Property

         

Foreign 
Nationals

         

Clearing 
Members 

6419 0 6419 0.05 244330 0 244330 1.84 3706.36

Trusts          

Foreign 
Bodies-D R 

         

Sub-total 
(B)(2):-

5227750 458180 5685930 42.89 5240470 444860 5685330 42.89 -0.01

Total Public 
Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+ 
(B)(2)

5228850 459780 5688630 42.91 5241570 446460 5688030 42.91 -0.01

C. Shares 
held by 
Custodian for 
GDRs & ADRs

         

Grand Total 
(A+B+C)

12795987 459781 13255768 100.00 12809107 446661 13255768 100.00 0.00

ii) Shareholding of Promoters 

Sl
No

Shareholder’s 
Name

Shareholding at the beginning of 
the year  

[As on 01/04/2014]

Shareholding at the end of the year         
[As on 31/03/2015]

% change 
in share 
holding 

during the 
Year No. of 

Shares
% of total 

Shares 
of the 

Company

% of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 
to total 
shares

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares 
of the 

Company

% of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 
to total 
shares

1 Williamson Magor 
& Co Limited

4319043 32.58 0.00 4319043 32.58 0.00 0.00

2 Bishnauth 
Investments 
Limited

1454200 10.97 0.00 1454200 10.97 0.00 0.00

3 United Machine 
Co Ltd

929126 7.01 0.00 929126 7.01 0.00 0.00

4 Mcleod Russel 
India Limited

848168 6.40 0.00 848168 6.40 0.00 0.00

5 B M Khaitan 15400 0.12 0.00 15400 0.12 0.00 0.00

6 Deepak Khaitan 1200 0.01 0.00 1200 0.01 0.00 0.00

7 Shanti Khaitan 0 0.00 0.00 400 0.00 0.00 100.00

8 Brij Mohan 
Khaitan

0 0.00 0.00 200 0.00 0.00 100.00

9 Deepak Khaitan 1 0.00 0.00 1 0.00 0.00 0.00

 Total 7567138 57.09 0.00 7567738 57.09 0.00 0.01
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iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding

Sl No Name Shareholding 
at the 

beginning 
[01/04/14]/

end of the year 
[31/03/2015]

% of total 
shares 
of the 
company

Cumulative 
Shareholding 

during 
the year 

[01/04/14 to 
31/03/2015]

% of total 
shares 
of the 
company

No. of shares No. of shares

1 DEEPAK KHAITAN     

 01-04-2014 1 0.0000   

 31-03-2015 1 0.0000 1 0.0000

2 BRIJ MOHAN KHAITAN     

 01-04-2014 0 0.0000   

 30/09/2014 - Transfer   200 0.0015

 31-03-2015 200 0.0015 200 0.0015

3 MCLEOD RUSSEL INDIA LIMITED     

 01-04-2014 848168 6.3985   

 31-03-2015 848168 6.3985 848168 6.3985

4 UNITED MACHINE CO LTD     

 01-04-2014 929126 7.0092   

 31-03-2015 929126 7.0092 929126 7.0092

5 WILLIAMSON MAGOR & CO LIMITED     

 01-04-2014 4319043 32.5824   

 31-03-2015 4319043 32.5824 4319043 32.5824

6 BISHNAUTH INVESTMENTS LIMITED     

 01-04-2014 1454200 10.9703   

 31-03-2015 1454200 10.9703 1454200 10.9703

7 SHANTI KHAITAN     

 01-04-2014 0 0.0000   

 31/03/2015 - Transfer   400 0.0030

 31-03-2015 400 0.0030 400 0.0030

8 DEEPAK KHAITAN     

 01-04-2014 1200 0.0091   

 31-03-2015 1200 0.0091 1200 0.0091

9 B M KHAITAN     

 01-04-2014 15400 0.1162   

 31-03-2015 15400 0.1162 15400 0.1162
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iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)

Sl 
No

Name Shareholding 
at the 

beginning 
[01/04/14]/

end of the year 
[31/03/2015]

 % of total 
shares of 

the company

Cumulative 
Shareholding 

during the year 
[01/04/14 to 
31/03/2015]

% of total 
shares 
of the 

company

No. of shares No. of shares

1 SYSTEMATIX FINCORP INDIA LIMITED     

 01-04-2014 0 0.00   

 31/12/2014 - Transfer   55000 0.41

 31-03-2015 55000 0.41 55000 0.41

2 KAMAL KUMAR JALAN SECURITIES PVT.LTD. (JOBBING A/C) #

 01-04-2014 65500 0.49   

 30/06/2014 - Transfer   53500 0.40

 01/08/2014 - Transfer   52500 0.40

 30/09/2014 - Transfer   38000 0.29

 31/12/2014 - Transfer   31000 0.23

 20/03/2015 - Transfer   25000 0.19

 31/03/2015 - Transfer 24000 0.18 24000 0.18

3 NINJA  SECURITIES  PRIVATE  LIMITED     

 01-04-2014 66125 0.50   

 30/06/2014 - Transfer   43985 0.33

 01/08/2014 - Transfer   42485 0.32

 30/09/2014 - Transfer   44251 0.33

 31/12/2014 - Transfer   42250 0.32

 20/03/2015 - Transfer   31248 0.24

 31/03/2015 - Transfer 73089 0.55 73089 0.55

4 SUSHIL FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LTD (BEN A/C) 

 01-04-2014 24240 0.18   

 11/04/2014 - Transfer   24765 0.19

 30/06/2014 - Transfer   38295 0.29

 01/08/2014 - Transfer   37465 0.28

 30/09/2014 - Transfer   42095 0.32

 31/12/2014 - Transfer   69363 0.52

 20/03/2015 - Transfer   71131 0.54

 31/03/2015 - Transfer 59189 0.45 59189 0.45

5 YORK FINANCIAL SERVICES PVT. LTD.     

 01-04-2014 2214 0.02   

 30/06/2014 - Transfer   40610 0.31

 01/08/2014 - Transfer   13936 0.11

 31/12/2014 - Transfer   44542 0.34

 20/03/2015 - Transfer   65281 0.49

 31-03-2015 65281 0.49 65281 0.49

6 G. SUNDAR     

 01-04-2014 182751 1.38   

 31-03-2015 182751 1.38 182751 1.38
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Sl 
No

Name Shareholding 
at the 

beginning 
[01/04/14]/

end of the year 
[31/03/2015]

 % of total 
shares of 

the company

Cumulative 
Shareholding 

during the year 
[01/04/14 to 
31/03/2015]

% of total 
shares 
of the 

company

No. of shares No. of shares

7 RADHIKA TRADERS & INVESTORS LTD.     

 01-04-2014 69200 0.52   

 31-03-2015 69200 0.52 69200 0.52

8 THE CALCUTTA STOCK EXCHANGE LIMITED *     

 01-04-2014 0 0.00   

 31/03/2015 - Transfer 189523 1.43 189523 1.43

9 ROHIT RAJGOPAL DHOOT     

 01-04-2014 55000 0.41   

 31/12/2014 - Transfer   0 0.00

 31-03-2015 0 0.00 0 0.00

10 ANUSHREYA INVESTMENTS PVT. LTD.     

 01-04-2014 82121 0.62   

 04/04/2014 - Transfer   86528 0.65

 11/04/2014 - Transfer   88368 0.67

 30/06/2014 - Transfer   55116 0.42

 30/09/2014 - Transfer   39998 0.30

 31/12/2014 - Transfer   94146 0.71

 20/03/2015 - Transfer   105980 0.80

 31/03/2015 - Transfer 116581 0.88 116581 0.88

11 ANUSHIKHA INVESTMENTS PVT LTD     

 01-04-2014 40548 0.31   

 04/04/2014 - Transfer   43700 0.33

 30/06/2014 - Transfer   0 0.00

 20/03/2015 - Transfer   140345 1.06

 31/03/2015 - Transfer 44366 0.33 44366 0.33

12 WEALTH MANTRA LIMITED #     

 01-04-2014 70252 0.53   

 30/09/2014 - Transfer   10715 0.08

 31/12/2014 - Transfer   75 0.00

 31-03-2015 75 0.00 75 0.00

13 RANJIT SINGH MUNDRA #     

 01-04-2014 121617 0.92   

 31/12/2014 - Transfer   42580 0.32

 20/03/2015 - Transfer   0 0.00

 31-03-2015 0 0.00 0 0.00

14 RISEWELL HOUSING LLP *     

 01-04-2014 0 0.00   

 30/06/2014 - Transfer   4990 0.04

 20/03/2015 - Transfer   50454 0.38

 31/03/2015 - Transfer 67941 0.51 67941 0.51
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Sl 
No

Name Shareholding 
at the 

beginning 
[01/04/14]/

end of the year 
[31/03/2015]

 % of total 
shares of 

the company

Cumulative 
Shareholding 

during the year 
[01/04/14 to 
31/03/2015]

% of total 
shares 
of the 

company

No. of shares No. of shares

15 DEVIKA ANAND *     

 01-04-2014 32705 0.25   

 30/06/2014 - Transfer   90091 0.68

 31-03-2015 90091 0.68 90091 0.68

16 LINCOLN P COELHO     

 01-04-2014 50000 0.38   

 31-03-2015 50000 0.38 50000 0.38

17 BHAGIRATH PASARI     

 01-04-2014 224100 1.69   

 31-03-2015 224100 1.69 224100 1.69

18 DHEERAJ KUMAR LOHIA     

 01-04-2014 66080 0.50   

 31-03-2015 66080 0.50 66080 0.50

19 SNEHALATHA SINGHI     

 01-04-2014 101384 0.76   

 31-03-2015 101384 0.76 101384 0.76

20 GAURAV  SUD     

 01-04-2014 0 0.00   

 01/08/2014 - Transfer   54000 0.41

 31/12/2014 - Transfer   0 0.00

 31-03-2015 0 0.00 0 0.00

* Not in the list of Top 10 shareholders as on 01/04/2014. The same has been reflected above since the shareholder was one 
of the Top 10 shareholders as on 31/03/2015.

# Ceased to be in the list of Top 10 shareholders as on 31/03/2015. The same is reflected above since the shareholder was 
one of the Top 10 shareholders as on 01/04/2014.

v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Sl 
No

Name Shareholding at 
the beginning 
[01/04/14]/

end of the year 
[31/03/2015]

 % of total 
shares of the 

company

Cumulative 
Shareholding 

during 
the year 

[01/04/14 to 
31/03/2015]

% of total 
shares 
of the 

company

No. of shares No. of shares

1 Deepak Khaitan#     

 01-04-2014 1201 0.01   

 31-03-2015 1201 0.01 1201 0.01

# Mr. Deepak Khaitan left for his heavenly abode on 9th March, 2015 and his shares are under transmission to his legal heir.
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V. INDEBTEDNESS
 Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding /accrued but not due for payment (Rs. Lakhs)

S. 
no.

Particulars Secured Loans 
excluding 
deposits

Unsecured 
Loans

Deposits Total 
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of financial year

i. Principal Amount 1672.51 100 - 1772.51

ii. Interest due but not paid - - - -

iii. Interest accrued but not due 3.44 - - 3.44

Total (i + ii + iii ) 1675.95 100 - 1775.95

Change in Indebtedness during the financial 
year

• Addition 1176 - 1176

• Reduction - (100) - -

Net Change 1176 (100) 1176

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i. Principal Amount 2848.51 - - 2848.51

ii. Interest due but not paid - - - -

iii. Interest accrued but not due 5.84 - - 5.84

Total (i + ii + iii) 2854.35 - - 2854.35

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

 A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager
(Rs. Lakhs)

S. 
no.

Particulars Remuneration to 
Managing Director

1 Gross Salary

a. Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 117.15

b. Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 2.78

c. Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 -

2 Stock Option -

3 Sweat Equity -

4 Commission -

- as % of profit -

- others, specify … -

5 Others, please specify -

Total 119.93
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 B. Remuneration to other directors 

Names of Directors Sitting Fees  
(Rs./-)

Commission Others Total

Mr. Deepak Khaitan 30,000 0.00 0.00 30,000

Mr. Aditya Khaitan 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Mr. Subir Ranjan Dasgupta 70,000 0.00 0.00 70,000

Mr. Amritanshu  Khaitan 40,000 0.00 0.00 40,000

Mr. Manmohan Singh 1,00,000 0.00 0.00 1,00,000

Mr. Padam Kumar Khaitan 70,000 0.00 0.00 70,000

Mr. Gobind Saraf 1,30,000 0.00 0.00 1,30,000

Mrs. Priya Saran Chaudhri 10,000 0.00 0.00 10,000

 C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD / MANAGER / WTD
                      (Rs. Lakhs)

S. 
no.

Particulars Remuneration 
to C.F.O.

Remuneration 
to C.S.

1 Gross Salary

a. Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 
1961

34.11 9.44

b. Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 3.00 0.45

c. Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 - -

2 Stock Option - -

3 Sweat Equity - -

4 Commission - -

- as % of profit - -

- others, specify … - -

5 Others, please specify - -

Total 37.11 9.89

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES 

 There were no penalties, punishment or compounding of offenses for the year ended March 31, 2015.

For and on behalf of the Board

Kolkata Aditya Khaitan

Date: May 28, 2015 Chairman 
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
(Pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement)

I. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY

 Corporate Governance is very important for an organization as it shows the effective governance, the strength 
and standard of the Company. Your Company always follows principles and standards, ethical practices and 
remains transparent when it deals with stake holders.

 The Company has adopted Code of Conduct for its employees including Executive and Non-Executive Directors. 
Human resource policy of the Company is also modified from time to time keeping the principles and culture 
of work in the interest of the employees and growth of the Company and its stakeholders.

 The Company has strong legacy of fair, transparent and ethical governance practices. Compliance of all the 
provisions, rules and regulations is regularly audited to fulfill the demand of regulators and stakeholders and 
to give worth to their money, time, effort and investment. 

II. COMPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

 i) As on 31st March 2015, the Company has eight directors including a Non-Executive Chairman. Mr. Deepak 
Khaitan, Chairman of the Company left for his heavenly abode on 9th March, 2015.  Board appointed 
Mr. Aditya Khaitan as an additional director and chairman of the Board on 31st March, 2015.  The Board 
consists of optimum numbers of Non-Executive and Independent Directors as per the Clause 49 of the 
Listing Agreement with ultimate responsibility & substantial powers of management. There are two Non-
Executive Directors and four Independent Directors out of total seven Directors in the Board.  

 ii) None of the Directors hold membership in more than ten committees and chairmanship in more than 
five committees. The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at the Board 
Meetings and last Annual General Meeting, Directorship held in other Companies, Committee Chairmanship 
/ Membership held in other Companies as at 31st March, 2015 is given below :

Sr. 
No.

Names of the 
Directors

Category No. of Board 
Meetings during the 

year 2014-15 1

Attendance 
at the 

last AGM 
held on 

30.09.2014

Directorship 
in other 
public 

Companies2

Committee 
position held 

in other public 
Companies3

Held Attended Chairman Member

1 Mr. Deepak Khaitan, 
Chairman  (upto 9th 
March, 2015 )

Non-Executive 4 3 No N/A N/A N/A

2 Mr. Aditya Khaitan, 
Chairman
(w.e.f. 31-03-2015)

Non-Executive Nil Nil N/A 8 1 2

3 Mr. Supriya Mukherjee, 
Managing Director

Executive 4 4 Yes - - -

4 Mr. Subir Ranjan 
Dasgupta

Independent 4 3 No 3 1 3

5 Mr. Amritanshu 
Khaitan

Non-Executive 4 4 No 9 - -

6 Mr. Manmohan Singh Independent 4 3 Yes - - -

7 Mr. Padam Kumar  
Khaitan

Independent 4 3 Yes 8 3 5

8 Mr. Gobind Saraf Independent 4 4 Yes 2 - -

9 Mrs. Priya Saran 
Chaudhri

Independent 1 1 N/A 1 - 1

1  Only the Board Meetings held after the appointment of director and held during his / her tenure are mentioned.

2  Directorship held in Private Companies, Section 25 Companies and Foreign Companies and alternate directorship 
is not included.
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3  Only Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee are taken into consideration as per the 
provisions of Clause 49 of Listing Agreement. 

 The Company’s Chairman is a Non-Executive Director and as at March 31, 2015, Independent Directors 
comprise one-half of the Board strength.  Composition of Board has not changed since the last report.

 For the year ended March 31, 2015 Mr. Deepak Khaitan, Mr. Amritanshu Khaitan and Mr. Aditya Khaitan were 
within  the definition of ‘relative’ under the Companies Act, 2013,  Mr. Deepak Khaitan and Mr. Amritanshu 
Khaitan, were father and son respectively.  Mr. Aditya Khaitan is uncle of Mr. Amritanshu Khaitan.

iii) The fees / compensation, if any, paid to the Non-Executive Directors has been disclosed hereafter in this Report. 
None of the Non-Executive Directors of the Company has any pecuniary relationship and / or transaction with 
the Company.  

iv) Board has met from time to time as detailed hereafter taking into consideration the compliance reports of all 
applicable laws. The information as specified in Annexure IA of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement is provided 
to the Board as and when applicable and material.

v) The Board has adopted “Code of Conduct for Board Members and Senior Management of the Company”. All 
the Board Members and Senior Management have affirmed the compliance with the said Code of Conduct 
during the year 2014 - 15.  A declaration to this effect signed by Managing Director ( CEO as per clause 49 ) 
is appended to this Report of Corporate Governance. The Code of Conduct is available on the website of the 
Company i.e., www.kilburnengg.com

III. BOARD MEETINGS

 The Board of Directors of the Company regularly meets as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
other rules, regulations and agreement etc to take the compliance of transactions & activities of the Company 
from time to time. All major decisions of the Company are taken by the Board in duly held meetings of it and 
its committees.

 i) The Board has been called within the required time gap under the listing agreement. During the 
financial year 2014-15, the Board has met four times as on 29/5/2014, 13/8/2014, 14/11/2014 and 
12/02/2015 without exceeding four months gap between two meetings. The meetings are convened by 
giving appropriate advance notice with material and important items pertaining to the development and 
working of the Company in an explanatory agenda leading to take strategic decisions. Detailed agenda, 
management reports and other explanatory statements are circulated in advance amongst the Board 
members for facilitating meaningful, informed and focused decisions at the meetings. All the meetings of 
the Board and its committees were completed with proper quorum. All the proceedings of the meetings 
are properly entered in the Minutes Book within 30 days from conclusion of the meeting after the same 
being drafted by the Company Secretary and checked by the Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

 ii) Details of remuneration and sitting fees to Directors ( for attending meetings of Board of Directors, Audit 
Committee, Share Transfer and Shareholder Grievance Committee and Remuneration Committee ) for the 
year 2014-15 are as under:

(Amount in `)                                                                        

Names of Directors Designation Sitting 
Fees

Salary & 
Perquisites 

**

Commission Total

Mr. Deepak Khaitan Non-
Executive***

30,000 NA NA 30,000

Mr. Aditya Khaitan Non-
Executive***

Nil Nil Nil Nil

Mr. Supriya Mukherjee Executive NA 146.48 
Lacs** 

Nil 146.48 
Lacs** 

Mr. Subir Ranjan 
Dasgupta

Independent*** 70,000 NA NA 70,000
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Names of Directors Designation Sitting 
Fees

Salary & 
Perquisites 

**

Commission Total

Mr. Amritanshu Khaitan Non- 
Executive***

40,000 NA NA 40,000

Mr. Manmohan Singh Independent*** 1,00,000 NA NA 1,00,000

Mr. Padam Kumar 
Khaitan

Independent*** 70,000 NA NA 70,000 

Mr. Gobind Saraf Independent*** 1,30,000 NA NA 1,30,000

Mrs. Priya Saran 
Chaudhri

Independent*** 10,000 NA NA 10,000

  ** Includes salary, house rent allowance, contribution to provident / gratuity / superannuation funds. 
Directors have not been granted any stock options during the year.

  *** Independent Directors and Non- Executive Directors are only paid sitting fees and reimbursement 
of travelling and out of pocket expenses for attending the Board and Committee Meetings.  The sitting 
fees paid to members of Borrowing Committee for attending one meeting held on 15th January 2015  
@ ` 10,000/- each to Mr. Padam Kumar Khaitan and Mr. Gobind Saraf is also included in the above 
mentioned sitting fees.

Shareholding of Non-Executive Directors

Details of the equity shares held by Non-Executive Directors as on 31st March, 2015 are as under:

Names of Directors Nature of Directorship No. of Equity shares 
held

% to the Paid up 
Capital

Mr. Subir Ranjan Dasgupta Independent Director NIL NIL

Mr. Manmohan Singh Independent Director NIL NIL

Mr. Padam Kumar Khaitan Independent Director NIL NIL

Mr. Gobind Saraf Independent Director NIL NIL

Estate of Mr. Deepak Khaitan * Non-Executive 1,201 Shares 0.00

Mr. Amritanshu Khaitan Non-Executive NIL NIL

Mr. Aditya Khaitan Non-Executive Nil Nil

Mrs. Priya Saran Chaudhri Independent Director Nil Nil

* Mr. Deepak Khaitan left for his heavenly abode on 9th of March, 2015 and his shares constitute estate of Mr. Deepak 
Khaitan, which is under transmission to his legal heir.

IV. AUDIT COMMITTEE

 i) Members of the Audit Committee:

  All the members of the Audit Committee are financially literate and have acquired financial, accounting 
and legal expertise. The Chairman of the Audit Committee is a Non-Executive Independent Director. The 
Audit Committee is constituted in line with Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement entered into with Stock 
Exchanges read with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 has following members:

Names of the Members Position Held Category

Mr. Subir Ranjan Dasgupta Chairman Non-Executive Independent Director

Mr. Supriya Mukherjee Member Managing Director 

Mr. Manmohan Singh Member Non-Executive Independent Director

Mr. Gobind Saraf Member Non-Executive Independent Director

Mr. Arvind Bajoria Secretary Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
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 ii) Details of the meetings of the Audit Committee during the year 2014-15 and its objectives:-

  During the year 2014-15, four meetings of the Audit Committee were held and attended by the members 
as per the details given below;

Sr. 
No.

Name of Members Meetings / Attendance

29/5/2014 13/8/2014 14/11/2014 12/02/2015

1 Mr. Subir Ranjan Dasgupta Present Absent Present Absent

2 Mr. Supriya Mukherjee Present Present Present Present

3 Mr. Manmohan Singh Present Present Absent Present

4 Mr. Gobind Saraf Present Present Present Present

  The Vice President - Finance & Chief Financial Officer of the Company and Statutory Auditors are invitees 
to the meetings of the Audit Committee. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee. 

  The Audit Committee after approving minutes of its Meetings has forwarded to the Board of Directors of 
the Company for their noting at the Board meeting.

 iii) Terms of reference

  The terms of reference of Audit Committee cover the matters specified under Clause 49 of the Listing 
Agreement as well as section Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and broadly following functions are 
performed by it: 

  a) Overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process to ensure disclosure of financial information 
as per the requirements of Stock Exchange and the Company Law requirements and to ensure that 
the financial statements are correct and credible.

  b) Review of quarterly, half yearly and annual financial statements before submission to the Board for 
approval.

  c) Review of Management Discussion & Analysis of financial condition and results of operations, 
statement of significant related party transactions.

  d) Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and if required, the replacement or 
removal of the Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors and the fixation of audit fees. 

  e) Review of the adequacy of internal control systems, including the structure of the internal audit 
department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure, 
coverage and frequency of internal audit and further recommending to the Internal Auditors 
regarding the nature and scope of internal audit.

  f) Review of reports of Statutory and Internal Auditors and replies of the management thereof.

  g) Disclosure of any related party transactions, approval or any subsequent modification of transactions 
of the company with related parties.

  h) Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.

  i) Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary.

  j) Review of the findings of any internal investigations by the Internal Auditors into matters where 
there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature 
and reporting the matter to the Board.

  k) Review of the annual financial statements with the management  before submission to the Board for 
approval, with particular reference to :

   • Matters required to be included in the Directors’ Responsibility Statement to be included in the 
Board’s report in terms of Clause (5) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013.

   • Changes, if any, in the accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.
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   • Major accounting entries involving estimates based on exercise of judgment of the management.

   • Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings.

  • Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements.

  • Qualifications in the draft audit report.

 l) Review of management representation letters to be issued to the Statutory Auditors.

 m) Looking into the reasons for substantial defaults in payments to the depositors, debenture holders, 
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors.

 n) Reviewing compliances as regards the Company’s Whistle Blower Policy.

 o) Approval of the appointment of the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company after assessing the 
qualifications, experience & background, etc. of the Candidate.

V. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

 i) The Remuneration Committee consisted of the following members during the year 2014 - 15:

Names of Members Position Held Category

Mr. Subir Ranjan Dasgupta Chairman Non-Executive Independent Director

Mr. Manmohan Singh Member Non-Executive Independent Director

Mr. Gobind Saraf Member Non-Executive Independent Director

Mr. Arvind Bajoria Secretary Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

  One meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee was held during the financial year 2014-2015 
on 30th March, 2015 which was attended by Mr. Subir Ranjan Dasgupta and Mr. Manmohan Singh and 
the members recommended the appointment of Mr. Aditya Khaitan as additional director and adoption of 
remuneration policy of the Company.

 ii) Terms of reference:

  a) To determine and set forth, in consultation with the Board, the Remuneration  package of Executive 
Directors of the Company;

  b) To determine and approve the remuneration and commission / incentive payable to the Managing 
Director of the Company for each financial year;

  c) To approve the sitting fees / commission payable to the Non-Executive Directors of the Company;

  d) To approve, in the event of loss or inadequacy of profits in any given financial year, the minimum 
remuneration payable to the Managing Director and Whole-time Directors within the limits as 
specified in Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

 iii) Employee Stock Option Scheme:

  The Company does not have any Employee Stock Option Scheme in place.

 iv) Remuneration Policy:

  During the year 2014 – 15, Nomination and Remuneration Committee recommended remuneration policy 
of the Company for Directors and Key Managerial Personnel u/s 178(3) of The Companies Act, 2013 and 
the same was adopted by the Board.  The Company’s remuneration policy is based on the link between 
individual performance and business performance. Through its Remuneration policy, the Company 
endeavors to attract, retain, develop and motivate a high performance workforce. The remuneration 
to the Directors is determined by the Board within the statutory limits based on the recommendation 
of Remuneration Committee and subject to the approval of shareholders and Central Government, if 
required.



Report & Accounts 2014 - 2015

31

  During the year 2014 – 15, Mr. Supriya Mukherjee, Managing Director was paid ` 54 Lacs as Salary,  
` 27 Lacs as Bonus, ` 45.30 Lacs as perquisites and ` 20.18 Lacs was contributed to his retirement 
funds. He does not hold any equity shares in the Company as on 31st March, 2015. His tenure as per the 
agreement is from 01st April, 2014 till 31st March, 2017 was approved by shareholders at their meeting 
held on 30th September, 2014. The notice period is 6 months and no severance fees is payable to him. His 
remuneration for the current tenure was same as his previous tenure ended 31st March, 2014.

  The details of relationship between Directors inter-se, sitting fees paid to Non-Executive Directors during 
the year 2014-2015 ( for attending the meetings of Board of Directors, Audit Committee, Remuneration 
Committee and Share Transfer and Shareholder Grievance Committee )and the number of equity shares 
held by them is as follows:

Names of Directors Relationship 
between Directors 

inter-se 

Sitting fees 
paid for Board 
Meetings and 

Committee 
Meetings  

(in `)

Number of Equity 
Shares held in 
KEL as on 31st 
March, 2015

Mr. Deepak Khaitan
(Mr. Deepak Khaitan left for his heavenly 
abode on 9th March, 2015)

Father of  
Mr. Amritanshu Khaitan

30,000 1,201

Mr. Amritanshu Khaitan Son of Mr. Deepak 
Khaitan

40,000 NIL

Mr. Subir Ranjan Dasgupta - 70,000 NIL

Mr. Manmohan Singh - 1,00,000 NIL

Mr. Padam Kumar Khaitan - 70,000 NIL

Mr. Gobind Saraf - 1,30,000 NIL

  The Non-Executive Directors were paid sitting fees of  ` 10,000/- for each meeting of the Board and of 
Committee thereof attended by them.  Except for sitting fees, Non-Executive Directors are not paid any 
remuneration and / or commission. 

 v) Board Evaluation :

  The Board has devised the process and the criteria for the performance evaluation which has been 
recommended by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board.

  The process for performance evaluation is as under:

  •  The Board evaluates the performance of the Directors excluding the Director being evaluated.

  •  The Nomination & Remuneration Committee evaluates the performance of each Director.

  •  The Independent Directors evaluate the performance of the Non- Independent Directors including 
the Chairperson of the Company taking into account the views of the Executive and Non-Executive 
Directors and of the Board as a whole.

  •  Performances of the Audit, Nomination & Remuneration, Stakeholders Relationship and Corporate 
Social  Responsibility Committees are also evaluated.

  The criteria for performance evaluation as laid down by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, inter 
alia include:

  • Appropriate Board size, composition, independence, structure

  • Appropriate expertise, skills and leadership initiatives

  • Attendance in meetings and participation in discussions

  • Adequate knowledge about the Company’s business and the economic scenario

  • Innovative ideas for growth of the Company’s business and economic  scenario
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  • Effectiveness in discharging functions, roles and duties as required

  • Review and contribution to strategies, business and operations of the Company

  • Expression of independent opinion on various matters taken up by the Board

  • Timely flow of information and effective decision making

  • Defining roles and effective coordination and monitoring

  • Effective and prompt disclosures and communication

  • Compliance with applicable laws and adherence to Corporate Governance

  • Compliance with Policies, Code of Conduct etc.

VI.  STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

 i) During 2014- 15, the Company had a Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee pursuant to section 178 (5) 
of The Companies Act, 2013 for effective redressal of shareholders’ complaints like  transfer of shares, 
non-receipt of Annual Report, non- receipt of declared dividend etc and reporting of the same to the Board 
periodically. The Committee oversees performance of the Registrar and Transfer Agents of the Company 
and recommends measures for overall improvement in the quality of investor services.

 ii) The Committee as on 31st March, 2015 comprised of following members:

Names of the Members Position Held Category

Mr. Padam Kumar Khaitan Chairman Non-Executive Independent Director

Mr. Manmohan Singh Member Non-Executive Independent Director

Mr. Gobind Saraf Member Non-Executive Independent Director

Mr. Arvind Bajoria Secretary Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

 iii) Procedure for approval and details of meetings and attendance during the year 2014 - 2015:

  During the year 2014 - 2015, four meetings were held and attended by the members as per the details 
given below:

Sr. 
No.

Name of Members Meetings / Attendance

29/5/2014 13/8/2014 14/11/2014 12/02/2015

1 Mr. Padam Kumar Khaitan Present Present Present Absent

2 Mr. Gobind Saraf Present Present Present Present

3 Mr. Manmohan Singh Present Present Absent Present

  The power to approve the share transfer / transmission and dematerialization and / or rematerialisation 
has been delegated severally to Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary. The request for share 
transfer/transmission, dematerialization/rematerialisation and issue of new share certificates in lieu of 
old/worn-out/lost/defaced/split/consolidation etc. is processed and attended at least once in a fortnight in 
co-ordination with Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited, Registrars & Transfer Agents of the Company.

  All the above requests processed during a quarter are then taken into record for approval of Shareholders 
/ Investors’ Grievance cum Share Transfer Committee.
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 iv) Name, Designation and Contact details of Compliance Officer:
  Mr. Arvind Bajoria
  Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
  Plot No.6, MIDC Industrial Area, Kalyan Bhiwandi Road, 
  Saravali, Thane 421 311, Maharashtra – India.
  Phone: 91 2522 241800 / 91 2522 662200
  Fax:     91 2522 281026 / 91 2522 280166
  E-mail: arvind_bajoria@kilburnengg.com

 v) Details of Investors’ Complaints/Grievances and their status:

  The details of Investors’ Complaints received and redressed by the Company and its registrars Maheshwari 
Datamatics Pvt. Ltd. during the year 2014-2015 is as follows:

Nature of Complaints Number of 
Complaints Received

Number of 
Complaints Resolved

Non-receipt of Declared Dividend NIL NIL

Non-receipt of Share Certificates 1 1

Non-receipt of Annual Reports NIL NIL

Shares not dematerialized / rematerialized NIL NIL

Others NIL NIL

Total 1 1

VII. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

 The Company does not have any subsidiary companies.

VIII. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

 i) Details of last three Annual General Meetings (AGM):

Financial year AGM No. Day & Date Venue Time

2013-2014 26th Tuesday, 30th 

September, 2014
Williamson Magor Hall,  The Bengal 
Chamber of Commerce and Industry, 6, 
Netaji Subhash Road, Kolkata – 700 001

10.30 a.m.

2012-2013 25th Monday, 30th 

September, 2013
Williamson Magor Hall,  The Bengal 
Chamber of Commerce and Industry, 6, 
Netaji Subhash Road, Kolkata – 700 001

10.30 a.m.

2011-2012 24th Saturday, 29th 

September, 2012
Nilhat House,11, R. N. Mukherjee Road, 
Kolkata – 700 001

10.30 a.m.

 ii) Details of Special resolutions passed in last three Annual General Meetings (AGM):

AGM 
No.

No. of Special 
resolutions passed

Particulars of Special resolutions

26th 1 (One) 1. Re-appointment of Mr. Supriya Mukherjee as Managing Director 
of the Company for a period of three years w.e.f. 01st April, 2014;

25th NIL NA

24th NIL NA

 iii) Details of resolutions passed through Postal Ballot:

  During the year 2014-2015, four resolutions as mentioned below were passed through Postal Ballot. 
Under provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, As and when required, the Postal Ballot shall be conducted 
in accordance with the provisions of Section 110 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies ( 
Management and Administration) Rules, 2014.
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  1. Borrowing money(ies) for the business of the Company. 

  2. Creation of Charge / Mortgage on assets of the Company, both present and future, in favour of 
lenders.

  3. Making loans / investments or providing security / guarantee for other companies, as may be 
necessary for business of the Company.

  4.    Adoption of new articles of association of the Company. 

   All the resolutions were passed with requisite majority on 14th October, 2014.

IX. DISCLOSURES

 i) Related party transactions: 

  Related party transactions have been disclosed under Note 26.4 of Audited Accounts in accordance with 
“Accounting Standard 18”. A statement in summary form of transactions with related parties in the ordinary 
course of business is periodically placed before the Audit Committee for review and recommendation to 
the Board for their approval.

  No material transactions are entered with related parties in conflict with the interest of the Company’s 
business. All the transactions with related parties are entered at arm’s length price. The Disclosure of 
interest in any of the transaction is made to the Board every year by the Directors as and when they 
become interested. Further, interested Directors neither participate nor vote in the transaction wherein 
they have potential interest.

 ii) Disclosure of Accounting treatment:

  The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2015 are prepared in conformity 
with the Accounting Standards. From the current year, for project orders, which are executed over a 
period of time, the company has adopted progress method of accounting for better presentation of 
financial statements.

 iii) Risk Assessment:

  The Company has an effective and efficient Risk Assessment and Management System to track, analyze 
and mitigate the risks associated with the Company. The Board of Directors periodically reviews the 
procedure of Risk Assessment and Management and thereby frame a properly defined network with help 
of which executive management can control risks. The details of risks associated with the Company and 
the ways to mitigate those risks are discussed in Management Discussion & Analysis Report annexed to 
the Directors’ Report.

 iv) Proceeds from public issues, rights issues, preferential issues, etc.:

  During the year under review, the Company has not raised any proceeds through public issues, rights 
issues, preferential issues, etc.

 v) Remuneration of Directors:

  Already disclosed in Clause V which is “Nomination and Remuneration committee” section.

 vi) Management: 

  a) Management Discussion & Analysis report is attached as annexure “I” to Directors’ Report.

  b) There were no material financial and commercial transactions by Senior Management as defined in 
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement where they have personal interest that may have a potential 
conflict with the interests of the Company at large.

 vii) Shareholders:

  The brief profile and other information pertaining to Directorship held in other Companies, shareholding 
etc. of the Directors proposed to be re-appointed at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company 
are attached to the Notice of Annual General Meeting.
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 viii) Compliances:

  a) During the last three years ending on 31st March, 2015, there were no non-compliances, penalties, 
strictures imposed on the Company by Stock Exchanges, SEBI or any other statutory authority, on 
any matter related to capital markets.

  b) The Company has generally complied with all the statutory requirements of Listing Agreement 
entered into with Stock Exchanges including mandatory requirements of Clause 49.

  c) The details of compliance with non-mandatory requirements of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement 
is as follows;

   i) The Board has set up a Remuneration Committee to determine competitive remuneration 
package of Executive Directors of the Company. The details of Remuneration Committee are 
given earlier in this report.

   ii) Whistle Blower Policy:

    The Company has established a mechanism for employees to report to the management 
about the unethical behavior, fraud or violation of Company’s code of conduct. The mechanism 
provides for adequate safeguard to the victimized employees and spreads the way to curb 
those practices being followed in the office premises. None of the personnel of the Company 
has been denied access to the Audit Committee.

 ix) Means of Communication:

  Kilburn’s commitment to the principles of transparency in all its dealings is the foundation of its continuous 
endeavour to create sustainable value for all its stakeholders. In this pursuit, the Company places highest 
emphasis on Communicating information to its stakeholders. 

  In line with Clause 54 of the Listing Agreement, Company has maintained a functional website at www.
kilburnengg.com containing basic information about the Company, financial information, shareholding 
pattern, Notices, compliance with corporate governance, contact information of the Compliance Officer, 
Investor Relation Officer and Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company for investor grievances. The 
contents of the said website are updated from time to time.

  a) Financial results

   The quarterly, half yearly and annual results of the Company in the format prescribed under Clause 41 
of the Listing Agreement are published in prominent dailies such as Free Press Journal (English) and 
Sangbad Pratidin (Bengali) and also posted on the website of the Company i.e., www.kilburnengg.
com

  b) Other information

   Important official news and presentation made to institutional investors or to the analysts is also 
posted on the Company’s website www.kilburnengg.com, as and when released. 

 x) CEO/CFO Certificate:

  The CEO/CFO Certificate for the year ended 31st March, 2015 as required under Clause 49(V) of the 
Listing Agreement, was placed and taken on record at the Board Meeting of the Company held on  
28th May, 2015.

 xi) Certificate of compliance:

  The Certificate of a Practising Company Secretary confirming compliance with all requirements of the 
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement for the year ended 31st March, 2015 is appended to this report.

 xii) Insider Trading Code:

  The Company has adopted Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading in line with provisions 
of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. The Code of Conduct elaborates ways and 
measures to deal with unpublished price sensitive information and restricts the insider trading by any of 
the Directors and Senior Management personnel of the Company.
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a) Annual General Meeting

Date : Monday, 28th September, 2015

Time : 10:00 a.m.

Venue : Williamson Magor Hall, The Palladian Lounge, 
The Bengal Chamber of Commerce & Industry, 
6, Netaji Subhas Road, Kolkata – 700 001.

b) Financial year 2015-2016 (tentative schedule)

Quarter Results

Ending on June 30, 2015 Second week of August 2015

Ending on September 30, 2015 : Second week of November 2015

Ending on December 31, 2015 : Second week of February 2016

Year ended March 31, 2016 : In the month of May 2016
AGM is proposed to be held in September 2016.

c) Date of Book Closure                 23rd September, 2015 to 30th September, 2015 

(Both days inclusive)

d) Listing on Stock Exchanges : BSE Limited (BSE), Mumbai

 The Calcutta Stock Exchange Association 
Limited (CSE), Kolkata

The Annual Listing fees for the year 2014-
2015 has been paid to the above two Stock 
Exchanges within the stipulated time.

e) Stock Code

BSE Ltd : 522101

The Calcutta Stock Exchange Association Ltd. : 21022

f) Corporate Identification Number : L24232WB1987PLC042956

g) ISIN number : INE338F01015

 

  h) Stock Market Price Data  :

Month & Year Share Price of KEL on BSE BSE Sensex

Month's 
High  
(`)

Month’s 
Low 
(`)

Month’s 
Closing 
Price (`)

Volume 
of shares 
traded 
(In no.)

Month’s 
High 
(Index 
point)

Month’s 
Low 
(Index 
point)

April 2014 24.30 20.00 21.55 159386 22939.31 22197.51

May 2014 34.80 20.15 28.30 830949 25375.63 22277.04

June 2043 39.40 28.60 34.45 612081 25725.12 24270.2

July 2014 37.20 30.05 30.10 277527 26300.17 24892

August 2014 32.80 27.00 32.00 226231 26674.38 25232.82

September 2014 41.90 31.95 34.85 537034 27354.99 26220.49

October 2014 38.20 31.00 35.80 123100 27894.32 25910.77

November 2014 53.25 33.25 49.65 1162033 28822.37 27739.56

December 2014 55.00 38.00 41.05 407649 28809.64 26469.42

January 2015 51.90 38.45 44.50 517313 29844.16 26776.12

February 2015 54.65 40.50 45.75 553564 29560.32 28044.49

March 2015 57.60 43.00 54.30 720458 30024.74 27248.45
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  i) Performance of share price of the Company in comparison to BSE Sensex:

   KEL Share Price and Sensex Movement (For FY 2014-2015)

  j) Registrars and Transfer Agents : Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited
      6, Mangoe Lane, 2nd Floor,  

   Surendra Mohan Ghosh Sarani, Kolkata – 700 001.
      Tel No.: (033) 2243 5809 / 5029; 2248 2248
      Fax No.: (033) 2248 4787
      E-mail: mdpl@cal.vsnl.net.in 

  k) Share Transfer System:

   The physical transfer of shares is processed and approved by the Company in co-ordination with 
Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited, at least once in every fortnight. The Share Certificates 
after effecting transfer are dispatched to the shareholders within 15 days from the date of receipt 
of transfer request, if the transfer documents are found technically in order and complete in all 
respects. The transfer of shares held in Demat mode is processed electronically by Maheshwari 
Datamatics Private Limited within 21 days from the date of receipt of the request.

   The Shares of the Company are compulsorily traded in dematerialized form.

  l) Distribution of shareholding as on 31st March, 2015:  

No. of Equity shares 
held

No. of 
shareholders

% of 
shareholders

No. of shares % of 
shareholding

UPTO - 500 7927 86.11 1239369 9.35

501 – 1000 657 7.14 558230 4.21

1001 - 2000 277 3.01 433836 3.27

2001 - 3000 120 1.30 315486 2.38

3001 - 4000 49 0.53 175119 1.32

4001 - 5000 37 0.40 175216 1.32

5001 - 10000 77 0.84 571396 4.31

10001 and above 62 0.67 9787116 73.83

TOTAL 9206 100.00 13255768 100.00

   Shareholding pattern as on 31st March, 2015:

Category No. of 
Shareholders

No. of  Shares 
held

Percentage of 
Shareholding

A Promoters’ Holding

1 Promoters

Indian 9  7567738 57.09

Foreign - - -

B Public Shareholding 

2 Institutional Investors -

a. Mutual Funds and UTI 2 900 0.01

b. Banks, Financial Institutions 3 1800 0.01

c. Insurance Companies - - -

d. Foreign Institutional Investors - - -
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Category No. of 
Shareholders

No. of  Shares 
held

Percentage of 
Shareholding

3 Others

a. Bodies Corporate 168 798618 6.02

b. Indian Public 8904 4579620 34.55

c. NRIs / OCBs 76 79114 0.60

d. Others 8 6419 0.05

Total (1+2+3) 9206 13255768 100.00

   None of the shares have been pledged or are otherwise encumbered.

  m) Dematerialization of shares and liquidity: Details of Shares in Physical & Electronic Mode as on 
31st March 2015.

   The Company’s Shares are traded in Stock Exchange in dematerialized form and are available for 
trading in both the Depositories i.e., National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central 
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). As on March 31, 2015 the data are as follows. 

Particulars No. of Shares Percentage of Total Shares

Physical Segment 4,46,661 3.37 %

NSDL 1,05,69,524 79.74 %

CDSL 22,39,583 16.89 %

Grand Total     1,32,55,768 100.00  %

   ISIN No. of the Company’s Equity Shares is: INE338F01015

  n) Dividend

   Dividend History

Financial Year Type Dividend
Per share

Face Value % on face value

2014-2015 No dividend declared during 2014-15.

2013-2014 No dividend declared during 2013-14.

2012-2013 No dividend declared during 2012-13.

2011-2012 No dividend declared during 2011-12.

2010-2011 Final ` 2.50 10 25.00 %

  o) Unpaid / Unclaimed dividend

   Section 205A and 205C of the Companies Act, 1956, mandates that the companies transfer dividend 
that has been unclaimed for a period of 7 years from the unpaid dividend account to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). In accordance with the following schedule, the dividend for 
the years mentioned below, if unclaimed within a period of seven years, will be transferred to IEPF.

Financial Year Unclaimed 
dividend 

amount as on 
31.03.2015 (`)

Date of 
Declaration

Dividend 
Payment Date

Due date for 
transfer to IEPF

2008-2009 
Final

433630.00 29th September, 
2009

08th October, 2009 07th October, 2016

2009-2010 
Final   

332572.50 31st August, 2010 08th September, 
2010

07th September, 
2017

2010-2011 
Final   

488037.50 24th September, 
2011

07th October, 2011 06th October, 2018
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  p) INVESTORS SAFEGAURDS:

   • Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity

    Shareholders are requested to convert their physical holding to demat/electronic form through 
any of the registered Depository Participants (DPs) to avoid the hassles involved in dealing in 
physical shares such as possibility of loss, mutilation, etc. and also to ensure safe and speedy 
transaction in respect of the shares held.

   • Update Address Details and Bank Details

    To receive all communications/corporate actions promptly, shareholders holding shares 
in dematerialized form are requested to please update their address/bank details with the 
respective DPs and in case of physical shares, the updated details have to be intimated to the 
Registrar & Share Transfer Agents.

   • National Electronic Clearing Service (NECS) / Electronic Clearing Services (ECS) 
mandate for Dividend

    NECS/ECS facility ensures timely remittance of dividend without possible loss/delay in postal 
transit. Shareholders/Members holding shares in electronic form may register their NECS/
ECS details with the respective DPs and Shareholders/Members holding shares in physical 
form may register their NECS/ECS details with the Registrars and Share Transfer Agent,  
M/s. Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt. Ltd., 6, Mangoe Lane, 2nd Floor, Surendra Mohan Ghosh 
Sarani, Kolkata – 700 001 to receive dividends, if declared, via the NECS/ECS mode.

   • Register Nomination(s)

    Members holding shares in physical form are requested to register the name of their nominee(s), 
who shall succeed the member as the beneficiary of their shares and in order to avail this 
nomination facility, they may obtain/submit the prescribed Form 2B from/with the Registrars 
& Share Transfer Agents. Members holding shares in dematerialized form are requested to 
register their nominations directly with their respective DPs.

   • Register E mail Address 

    As you all may be aware, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has taken a ‘Green Initiative in Corporate 
Governance’ by issuing Circulars 17/2011 and 18/2011 dated 21st April, 2011 and 29th April, 
2011, whereby Companies are permitted to send Notices/documents including Annual Report 
comprising Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Account, Directors’ Report, Auditors’ Report etc. in 
electronic mode (hereinafter referred to as ‘documents’), provided the Company has obtained 
email addresses of its members for sending these documents through email by giving an 
advance opportunity to every shareholder to register their email address and changes therein 
from time to time with the Company. Accordingly, shareholders holding shares in physical 
form are requested to register their email addresses and changes therein from time to time, 
by directly sending the relevant email address along with details such as name, address, 
folio no., no. of shares held to the Registrars and Share Transfer Agents, M/s. Maheshwari 
Datamatics Pvt. Ltd. In respect of shares held in electronic form, the email address along with 
DP ID/Client ID and other shareholder details as mentioned above should be registered by 
the shareholders with their respective Depository Participants. Upon registration of the email 
address, the Company proposes to send notices and documents, in electronic form, to such 
shareholders.
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q) Outstanding GDRs /ADRs /Warrants or any Convertible instruments, conversion date and 
likely impact on equity

r) Plant Location : Kilburn Engineering Limited
Plot No. 6, MIDC Industrial Area, 
Kalyan Bhiwandi Road, Saravali,
Thane 421 311, Maharashtra.

s) Address for Correspondence : Registered Office
Four Mangoe Lane,
Surendra Mohan Ghosh Sarani, 
Kolkata – 700 001.
Tel. No. : 033 22313337/3450
Fax No. : 033 22314768
E-mail: investors@kilburnengg.com

Corporate Office
Plot No. 6, MIDC Industrial Area,
Kalyan Bhiwandi Road, 
Saravali, Thane 421 311, 
Maharashtra.
Phone: 91 2522 241800 / 91 2522 662200
Fax:     91 2522 281026 / 91 2522 280166
E-mail: investors@kilburnengg.com

Registrars & Transfer Agents 
M/s Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt. Ltd.,
6, Mangoe Lane, 2nd Floor, 
Surendra Mohan Ghosh Sarani,
Kolkata – 700 001.
Tel No.: (033) 2243 5809 / 5029; 2248 2248
Fax No.: (033) 2248 4787
E-mail: mdpldc@yahoo.com

       
For and on behalf of the Board

Kolkata
28th May, 2015

                  Supriya Mukherjee
Managing Director
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Declaration of compliance with Code of Conduct

The Board of Directors
Kilburn Engineering Ltd
Kolkata

Dear Sirs,

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT OF THE COMPANY

This is to state that the Company had duly adopted a Code of Conduct for all the Board Members and senior 
management personnel for compliance. The Code of Conduct was circulated to the Directors and Senior Management 
Personnel and has also been posted on the website of the Company. The Company has since received declarations 
from all the Board Members and senior management personnel affirming compliance of the Code of Conduct of the 
Company in respect of the financial year ended March 31, 2015.

Kolkata Supriya Mukherjee  A. Suresh

28th May, 2015 Managing Director Chief Financial Officer

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,

The Members of
KILBURN ENGINEERING LTD.

I have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Kilburn Engineering Ltd for the year 
ended March 31, 2015 as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the Stock Exchanges.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. My examination was 
limited to procedures and implementation adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions 
of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the Financial Statement of the 
Company.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me, I certify that the 
Company has generally complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Clause 49 of the 
Listing Agreement.

I further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the 
efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

 For Dhrumil M Shah & Co.

Place: Mumbai Dhrumil M Shah
Date: 28th May, 2015 Company Secretary
 CP 8978; FCS 8021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF KILBURN ENGINEERING LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of KILBURN ENGINEERING LIMITED (“the Company”), 
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement 
for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of 
the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, 
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true 
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are 
required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the 
Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial 
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates 
made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the financial statements.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

The Company has made a partial provision for diminution in value of its investment in equity shares of Mcnally 
Bharat Engineering Company Limited for reason stated in note 25.4. We are unable to express an opinion on the 
extent of diminution, if any, in the value of investment in view of significant reduction in market price of the shares. 
Our audit report was modified in this regard in the previous year as well.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for possible 
effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the aforesaid financial statements give 
the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2015, and 
its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.
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Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note 25.10, in the Notes to the financial statements regarding managerial remuneration in 
excess of the limits specified under Companies Act, 2013 which is subject to the Central Government’s approval.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government 
in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in 
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

 a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

 b. Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, in our 
opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books.

 c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

 d. Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, in our 
opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

 e. The matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an 
adverse effect on the functioning of the Company.

 f. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2015 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2015 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

 g. The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as 
stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above.

 h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us:

  i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial 
statements – Refer Note 25.1 to the financial statements;

  ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for 
material foreseeable losses, on long-term contracts Refer Note 26.7 to the financial statements;

  iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants

(Firm’s Registration No. 117364W)

R. Salivati
Partner

MUMBAI, 28th May, 2015  (Membership No. 034004)
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ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our 
report of even date)

i. In respect of its fixed assets:

 (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and 
situation of fixed assets.

 (b) Some of the fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management in accordance with a 
programme of verification, which in our opinion provides for physical verification of all the fixed assets at 
reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanations given to us no material discrepancies 
were noticed on such verification.

ii. In respect of its inventories:

 (a) As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at 
reasonable intervals.

 (b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the procedures of physical 
verification of inventories followed by the Management were reasonable and adequate in relation to the 
size of the Company and the nature of its business.

 (c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has maintained 
proper records of its inventories and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

iii. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms or other parties covered 
in the Register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, having regard to the explanations 
that some of the items purchased are of special nature and suitable alternative sources are not readily available 
for obtaining comparable quotations, there is an adequate internal control system commensurate with the size 
of the Company and the nature of its business with regard to purchases of inventory and fixed assets and the 
sale of goods and services. During the course of our audit, we have not observed any major weakness in such 
internal control system.

v. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposit during 
the year.

vi. We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost 
Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended and prescribed by the Central Government under sub-section (1) 
of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records 
have been maintained and are being made up. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost 
records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

vii. According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

 (a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident 
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise 
Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate 
authorities.

 (b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, 
Income-tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and 
other material statutory dues in arrears as at 31st March, 2015 for a period of more than six months from 
the date they became payable except

Name of Statute Nature of Dues Amount 
Involved  
(` In lakhs)

Period to which 
the Amount 
Relates

Due Date

West Bengal State 
Tax , 1979

Profession Tax 0.11 1st April, 2014 to 
31st August, 2014

Last day of 
following month, 
latest 30th Sept, 
2014
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 (c) Details of dues of Income-tax and Value Added Tax which have not been deposited as on 31st March, 2015 
on account of disputes are given below :

Statute Nature of Dues Forum where 
Dispute is pending

Period to which 
the amount 
relates

Amount involved 
(` in lakhs)

Central Sales Tax 
Act

Sales Tax Joint Commissioner of 
Sales Tax

F Y 2008-09 29.25

Central Sales Tax 
Act

Central Sales Tax Bombay High Court F Y 2005-06 488.42

Maharashtra VAT 
Act

VAT Bombay High Court F Y 2005-06 111.98

Income Tax Act Income Tax Commissioner of 
Income Tax (Appeals)

A Y 2011-12 35.39

 d)  There are no amounts that are due to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund 
in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (1 of 1956) and Rules made 
thereunder.

viii. The Company does not have accumulated losses at the end of the financial year and the Company has not 
incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and in the immediately preceding financial 
year.

ix. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted 
in the repayment of dues to financial institutions and banks. The Company has not issued any debentures.

x. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given guarantees for loans 
taken by others from banks and financial institutions.

xi. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not taken any 
term loans during the year, hence clause xi of paragraph 3 the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015 is not 
applicable.

xii. To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the 
Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants

(Firm’s Registration No. 117364W)

R. Salivati
Partner

MUMBAI, 28th May, 2015  (Membership No. 034004)
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BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2015

(` in Lacs)
Note 
No.

 As at  
31st March, 2015 

 As at  
31st March, 2014 

A EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1 Shareholders’ funds
(a) Share capital 3  1,325.58  1,325.58 
(b) Reserves and surplus 4  8,485.70  8,082.81 

 9,811.28  9,408.39 
2 Non-current liabilities

Long-term provisions 5  278.05  267.32 
 278.05  267.32 

3 Current liabilities
(a) Short-term borrowings 6  2,848.51  1,772.51 
(b) Trade payables 7  2,849.13  2,352.94 
(c) Other current liabilities 8  4,586.94  4,446.57 
(d) Short-term provisions 9  517.29  325.56 

 10,801.87  8,897.58 
  

TOTAL  20,891.20  18,573.29 

B ASSETS

1 Non-current assets
(a) Fixed assets 10
 (i)  Tangible assets  6,375.11  6,537.91 
 (ii) Intangible assets  23.06  16.58 
 (iii) Capital work-in-progress  55.74  21.71 
 (iv) Intangible asset under development  -    29.76 

 6,453.91  6,605.96 

(b) Non-current investments 11  1,709.65  1,789.17 
(c) Long-term loans and advances 12  451.03  470.64 
(d) Other Non current assets 13  24.80  360.70 

 8,639.39  9,226.47 
2 Current assets

(a) Inventories 14  1,097.78  946.11 
(b) Trade receivables 15  2,910.32  1,893.45 
(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents 16  642.91  503.35 
(d) Short-term loans and advances 17  2,277.98  2,162.95 
(e) Other current assets 18  5,322.82  3,840.96 

 12,251.81  9,346.82 
TOTAL  20,891.20  18,573.29 

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial 
statements

1- 28

In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

R. Salivati 
Partner

Aditya Khaitan
Chairman
(DIN - 00023788) 

Supriya Mukherjee 
Managing Director 
(DIN - 00127747)  

A. Suresh 
VP-Finance & Chief Financial Officer 

Arvind Kumar Bajoria 
Company Secretary 

Place : Mumbai Place : Kolkata
Date  : 28th May 2015 Date  : 28th May 2015
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` In Lacs

Particulars Note 
No.

For the year  ended  
31st  March, 2015

For the year ended  
31st  March, 2014

1 Revenue from operations (gross) 19  12,637.87  12,175.76 

Less: Excise duty  (569.29)  (524.95)

Revenue from operations (net)  12,068.58  11,650.81 

2 Other income 20  343.04  256.30 

3 Total revenue (1+2)  12,411.62  11,907.11 

4 Expenses

(a) Cost of materials consumed 21.a  6,837.01  6,526.72 

(b) Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-
in-progress

21.b  (72.68)  107.69 

(c) Employee benefits expense 22  1,535.03  1,458.23 

(d) Finance costs 23  546.13  513.84 

(e) Depreciation and amortisation expense 10  420.41  333.81 

(f) Other expenses 24  2,563.60  2,641.15 

Total expenses  11,829.50  11,581.44 

5  Profit before tax (3 - 4)  582.12  325.67 

6 Tax expense :

(a) Current tax expense  163.50  87.00

(b) Deferred tax  4.86  -   

168.36 87.00

7 Profit for the year (5-6)  413.76  238.67 

8 Earnings per share (of ` 10/- each): 26.5

Basic / Diluted  3.12  1.80 

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial 
statements

1- 28

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2015

In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

R. Salivati 
Partner

Aditya Khaitan
Chairman
(DIN - 00023788) 

Supriya Mukherjee 
Managing Director 
(DIN - 00127747)  

A. Suresh 
VP-Finance & Chief Financial Officer 

Arvind Kumar Bajoria 
Company Secretary 

Place : Mumbai Place : Kolkata
Date  : 28th May 2015 Date  : 28th May 2015
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` in Lacs

Particulars
Year ended 
31st March, 

2015 

Year ended  
31st March, 

2014 

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before Tax  582.12  325.67 

Adjustments for :

Depreciation and amortisation expense  420.41  333.81 

Adjustments  to the carrying amount of long-term investments  79.52  121.31 

Intangible asset under development written off  29.76  -   

Liabilities no longer required written back  (76.48)  (17.81)

Bad debts written off  210.86  376.01 

Liquidated Damages, Warranties and Rebates  152.70  -   

Net gain in foreign currency translations  (75.14)  (130.13)

Finance Costs  546.13  513.84 

Dividend Income  (6.02)  (13.21)

Interest Income  (113.60)  (123.73)

Operating profit before working capital changes  1,750.26  1,385.76 

Changes in Working Capital :

Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets

Trade and Other Assets  (2,267.89)  (2,260.28)

Short Term Loans and advances  (230.03)  (335.07)

Long term loans and advances  19.61  46.39 

Inventories  (151.68)  308.41 

 (2,629.99)  (2,240.55)

Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities

Trade, Other Payables and Provisions  771.39  2,338.20 

Cash Generated from Operations  (108.34)  1,483.41 

Net Income Tax Paid  (128.46)  (69.27)

Net Cash (used in ) / flow from Operating Activities  (236.80)  1,414.24 

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital Expenditure on Fixed Assets  (313.86)  (64.65)

Net Bank balances not considered as cash and cash equivalents  (189.66)  (82.49)

Interest Received  39.43  33.85 

Dividend Received  6.02  13.21 

Inter-corporate deposit given  -    (450.00)

Inter-corporate deposit refunded  115.00  825.00 

Net Cash (used in) / flow from Investing Activities  (343.07)  274.92 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015
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` in Lacs

Particulars
Year ended 
31st March, 

2015 

Year ended  
31st March, 

2014 

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend paid (including Dividend Distribution Tax)  -    (0.06)

(Decrease) / Increase in Bank Borrowings (net)  1,176.00  (951.26)

Inter-corporate deposits taken / (repaid)  (100.00)  100.00 

Repayment of Long Term Borrowings  -    (500.00)

Finance Cost  (539.87)  (508.82)

Net Cash flow / (used in ) from Financing Activities  536.13  (1,860.14)

Net decrease in cash & cash equivalents (A+B+C)  (43.74)  (170.98)

Cash & Cash Equivalents - Opening Balance  69.81  240.79 

Cash & Cash Equivalents - Closing Balance  26.07  69.81 

Notes  

1 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under “Indirect Method” set out in “Accounting Standard 
(AS - 3) Cash Flow Statements” as notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.

2 Figures relating to the previous year have been recast where necessary to confirm to figures of the current 
year. 

In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

R. Salivati 
Partner

Aditya Khaitan
Chairman
(DIN - 00023788) 

Supriya Mukherjee 
Managing Director 
(DIN - 00127747)  

A. Suresh 
VP-Finance & Chief Financial Officer 

Arvind Kumar Bajoria 
Company Secretary 

Place : Mumbai Place : Kolkata
Date  : 28th May 2015 Date  : 28th May 2015
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 Corporate Information

 Kilburn Engineering Limited is in the business of process design, engineering, manufacturing, project 
management, installation and commissioning of equipment and systems for various process plants across the 
world.

2 Significant Accounting Policies

 2.1 Basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements

  The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accounting Standards specified under 
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 
and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 2013 Act”) / Companies Act, 1956 (“the 
1956 Act”), as applicable. The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the 
historical cost convention. The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements 
are consistent with those followed in the previous year.

 2.2 Use of Estimates

  The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the Management to 
make estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including 
contingent liabilities) and the reported income and expenses during the year. The Management believes 
that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future 
results could differ due to these estimates and the differences between the actual results and the estimates 
are recognised in the periods in which the results are known / materialise.

 2.3 Inventories

  Inventories are valued, after providing for obsolescence and other losses where considered necessary as 
under:

  - Raw Materials/Components: at lower of cost (determined on monthly weighted average cost basis) 
and net realizable value.

  - Stores and spare parts: at lower of cost (determined on FIFO basis) and net realizable value.

  - Work-in-progress and Finished Goods: at lower of weighted average cost (including appropriate 
proportion of overheads) and net realizable value.

   Net realisable value is estimated at the expected selling price less estimated completion and selling 
costs.

 2.4 Depreciation/Amortisation

  - Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its 
estimated residual value. Depreciation on tangible fixed assets has been provided on the straight-
line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Leasehold 
land is amortised over the duration of the lease. Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated 
useful life on straight line method over a period of 5 years. (Refer Note 10).

   - Assets costing ` 5,000/- or less are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition. Lease hold land and 
improvements are depreciated over the lease period.

 2.5 Revenue Recognition

  Revenue / Sales are recognized when significant risks and rewards associated with ownership are 
transferred to the buyer. Revenue from contract related activity is recognised on progress method; the 
stage of completion is measured by reference to the proportion that contract costs incurred for work done 
till the balance sheet date bears to the estimated total contract costs; full provision is made for any loss 
in the period in which it is foreseen.

 2.6 Fixed Assets (Tangible / Intangible )

  Fixed Assets are recorded at cost. The cost of fixed assets include all costs incidental to acquisition, 
commissioning and related internal costs. The fixed assets are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation.

 2.7 Foreign currency transactions and translations

  Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date 
of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency as at balance sheet date 
are restated at the exchange rates prevailing on that date. Exchange differences on such restatement 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

or on settlement are recognized in the Statement of profit and loss. The Company’s forward exchange 
contracts are not held for trading or speculation. The discount / premium arising on entering into such 
contract is amortised over the life of such contracts and exchange differences arising on such contracts 
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 2.8 Investments

  Long-term investments are stated at cost less diminution in value other than temporary. Current 
investments are stated at lower of cost or fair market value. Cost of investments included acquisition 
charges such as brokerage, fees and duties. Dividends are accounted for when declared.

 2.9 Employee benefits

  Employee benefits include provident fund, superannuation fund, gratuity fund and compensated absences.

  Defined contribution plans

  Provident fund is a defined contribution scheme and the contributions as required by the statute to 
Government Provident Fund are charged to Statement of profit and loss during the period in which 
employees perform the services that the payment covers. Superannuation fund is a defined contribution 
scheme. The Company contributes a sum equivalent to 15% of eligible employees’ salary to Superannuation 
Fund administered by a trust and managed by a life insurance company.

  Defined benefit plans

  Gratuity liability is defined benefit obligation and is funded with Life Insurance Corporation of India. The 
present value of gratuity obligation is actuarially determined based on the projected unit credit method 
as at the balance sheet date. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the Statement of profit and 
loss and are not deferred.

  Short-term employee benefits

  The amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered 
by employee is recognized during the period when the employee renders the service.

  Long-term employee benefits

  The company accrues the liability for compensated absences based on the actuarial valuation as at the 
balance sheet date conducted by an independent actuary.

 2.10 Borrowing Costs

  Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. The borrowing 
costs in respect of funds borrowed to finance the qualifying fixed assets until the assets are ready for 
commercial use are capitalised.

 2.11 Taxes on Income

  Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in accordance 
with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other applicable tax 
laws.  Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic 
benefits in the form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is 
convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as 
an asset in the Balance Sheet when it is highly probable that future economic benefit associated with it 
will flow to the Company. Deferred tax is recognized on timing differences between taxable income and 
accounting income that are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods. Deferred tax assets 
and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted 
on the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognized, on consideration of prudence if there is 
certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets will 
be realized; deferred tax asset consisting of losses / accumulated depreciation is recognized only if there 
is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that the asset will be realized in future. Such assets 
are reviewed as at each Balance Sheet date to reassess realisability thereof.

 2.12 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

  Provisions involve substantial degree of estimation in measurement and are recognized when it is 
probable  that there will be outflow of resources as a result of past events. Separate disclosure in notes 
to accounts is made for each class of provision. Contingent Liabilities (where outflow of resources is 
not considered probable) are not recognized but are disclosed in notes. Contingent assets are neither 
recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 3 Share Capital     

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2015  As at 31st March, 2014 

 Number of 
shares 

 ` in Lacs  Number of 
shares 

 ` in Lacs 

(a) Authorised

Equity shares of ` 10/- each with voting rights  21,747,900  2,174.79  21,747,900  2,174.79 

Redeemable preference shares of ` 10/- each  8,252,100  825.21  8,252,100  825.21 

(b) Issued

Equity shares of ` 10/- each with voting rights  13,255,768  1,325.58  13,255,768  1,325.58 

(c) Subscribed and fully paid up

Equity shares of ` 10/- each with voting rights  13,255,768  1,325.58  13,255,768  1,325.58 

Total  1,325.58  1,325.58 

(i) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting 
period:       

Particulars Opening 
Balance

Issue / Buy 
back

Closing 
Balance

Equity shares with voting rights

Year ended 31 March, 2015

 - Number of shares  13,255,768  -    13,255,768 

 - Amount (` In Lacs)  1,325.58  -    1,325.58 

Year ended 31 March, 2014

 - Number of shares  13,255,768  -    13,255,768 

 - Amount (` In Lacs)  1,325.58  -    1,325.58 

(ii) Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:  

Class of shares / Name of shareholder  As at 31st March, 2015  As at 31st March, 2014 

Number of 
shares held

% holding Number of 
shares held

% holding

Equity shares with voting rights

Williamson Magor & Co. Ltd  4,319,043 32.58  4,319,043 32.58

Bishnauth Investments Ltd.
(Formerly: Metal Centre Ltd.)

 1,454,200 10.97  1,454,200 10.97

United Machines Limited  929,126 7.01  929,126 7.01

Mcleod Russell India Limited  848,168 6.40  848,168 6.40

 The company has only one class of shares referred to above as Equity Shares having par value of ` 10/-. 
Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. Dividend if proposed by the Board of Directors is 
subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting, except in case of interim 
dividend.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 4 Reserves and surplus 

` in Lacs

Particulars As at 
31st March, 

2015

As at 
31st March, 

2014

(a) Capital reserve

Balance at the beginning and end of the year  0.08  0.08 

(b) Capital redemption reserve

Balance at the beginning and end of the year  24.01  24.01 

(c) Securities premium account

Balance at the beginning and end of the year  1,811.18  1,811.18 

(d) General reserve

Balance at the beginning and end of the year  843.10  843.10 

(e) Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss 

Opening balance  5,404.44  5,165.77 

Less: Depreciation on transition to Schedule II of the Companies Act, 
2013 on tangible fixed assets with nil remaining useful life (Net of 
deferred tax of ` 4.86 lacs) (Refer Note 25.9) 

 10.87  -   

Add: Profit  for the year  413.76  238.67 

Closing balance  5,807.33  5,404.44 

Total  8,485.70  8,082.81 

Note 5 Long-term Provisions

` in Lacs

Particulars As at 
31st March,

2015

As at 
31st March,

2014

(a) Provision for employee benefits: 

 Provision for compensated absences  85.14  62.91 

(b) Provision - Others:

  Provision for other contingencies (Refer Note 26.7)  192.91  204.41 

 Total  278.05  267.32 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 6 Short-term borrowings  

` in Lacs 

Particulars As at  
31st March, 

2015

As at  
31st March, 

 2014

(a) Loans repayable on demand (Secured)

 From Banks 

 (i) Cash Credit from Bank (Refer Note Below)  2,733.26  1,672.51 

 (ii) Buyers Credit  115.25  -   

(b) Unsecured Short Term Loans - Others  -    100.00 

Total  2,848.51  1,772.51 

Note:

Details of security: 

1. Equitable Mortgage created by way of Deposit of Title Deed on the Company’s immovable property situated at 
Plot No.6, Kalyan Bhiwandi Industrial Area, Thane.

2. Hypothecation of present and future stocks of raw materials, semi-finished goods, finished goods and book 
debts by way of first charge and also by hypothecation of movable plant and machinery by way of first charge.

Note 7 Trade payables

` in Lacs

Particulars As at  
31st March, 

2015

As at  
31st March, 

 2014

Trade payables:

Acceptances  582.36  594.69 

Other than Acceptances  2,266.77  1,758.25 

Total  2,849.13  2,352.94 

Note 8 Other current liabilities

` in Lacs

Particulars As at  
31st March, 

2015

As at  
31st March, 

 2014

(a) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  5.84  3.44 

(b) Unpaid dividends  12.56  12.56 

(c) Other payables 

(i) Statutory remittances (Contributions to PF and ESIC, Withholding 
Taxes, Excise Duty, VAT, Service Tax, etc.) 

 64.44  49.13 

(ii) Payable on purchase of Fixed Assets  -    37.68 

(iii) Interest accrued on trade payables  8.95  5.09 

(iv) Trade / security deposits received  2.18  6.55 

(v) Advances from customers  4,275.94  4,067.48 

(vi) Royalty and selling commission  217.03  264.64 

Total  4,586.94  4,446.57 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 9 Short-term provisions 

` in Lacs

Particulars As at 
31st March,

2015

As at 
31st March,

2014

(a) Provision for employee benefits: 

(i) Provision for bonus  19.76  20.78 

(ii) Provision for compensated absences  27.43  21.90 

 47.19  42.68 

(b) Provision - Others:

(i)  Provision for tax (net of advance tax ` 490.85 lacs (As at 31 
March, 2014 ` 259.40 lacs)

 312.15  277.13 

(ii)  Provision for Liquidated Damages (Refer Note 26.7)  157.95  5.75 

 470.10  282.88 

Total  517.29  325.56 

Note 10 Fixed Assets    ` In Lacs

A. Tangible assets Gross block

Balance as at  
1st April, 

2014

Additions Disposals Balance as at  
31st March, 

2015

(a) Leasehold Land  1,139.56  -    -    1,139.56 

 (Previous Year)  (1,139.56)  -    -    (1,139.56)

(b) Buildings  4,306.46  25.60  -    4,332.06 

 (Previous Year)  (4,306.46)  -    -    (4,306.46)

(c) Plant and Equipment  1,515.91  233.17  -    1,749.08 

 (Previous Year)  (1,486.82)  (29.09)  (1,515.91)

(d) Furniture and Fixtures  463.32  2.42  -    465.74 

 (Previous Year)  (460.82)  (2.50)  (463.32)

(e) Vehicles  132.97  -    -    132.97 

 (Previous Year)  (132.97)  -    (132.97)

(f) Office equipment  180.57  6.91  -    187.48 

 (Previous Year)  (166.61)  (13.96)  (180.57)

Total  7,738.79  268.10  -    8,006.89 

Previous year  7,693.24  45.55  -    7,738.79 
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` In Lacs

B. Tangible assets Accumulated depreciation and impairment Net Block

Balance  
as at  

1st April, 
2014

Depreciation/ 
amortisation 
expense for 

the year 

Eliminated 
on disposal 

of assets

Adjustment as 
per Schedule 
II to Co.Act. 

2013

Balance  
as at  

31st March, 
2015

Balance  
as at  

31st March, 
2015

Balance  
as at  

31st March, 
2014

(a) Leasehold Land  95.64  21.86  -    -    117.50  1,022.06  1,043.92 

 (Previous Year)  (73.78)  (21.86)  -    -    (95.64)

(b) Buildings  373.06  164.76  -    -    537.82  3,794.24  3,933.40 

 (Previous Year)  (229.23)  (143.83)  -    -    (373.06)

(c) Plant and Equipment  468.86  126.16  -    -    595.02  1,154.06  1,047.05 

 (Previous Year)  (364.04)  (104.82)  -    -    (468.86)

(d) Furniture and Fixtures  92.01  56.26  -    0.38  148.65  317.09  371.31 

 (Previous Year)  (63.06)  (28.95)  -    -    (92.01)

(e) Vehicles  54.48  16.25  -   6.22  76.95  56.02  78.49 

 (Previous Year)  (41.85)  (12.63)  -    -    (54.48)

(f) Office equipment  116.83  29.89  -   9.12  155.84  31.64  63.74 

 (Previous Year)  (97.15)  (19.68)  -    -    (116.83)

Total 1,200.88  415.18  -    15.72  1,631.78  6,375.11  6,537.91 

Previous year  869.11  331.77  -    -    1,200.88  6,537.91  -   

` In Lacs
C. Intangible assets Gross block

Balance as at  
1st April, 2014

Additions Disposals Balance as at  
31st March, 2015

Computer Software  19.76  11.71  -    31.47 
(Previous Year)  (8.89)  (10.87)  -    (19.76)

D. Intangible assets Accumulated depreciation and impairment Net block

Balance  
as at 1st 

April, 2014

Depreciation/ 
amortisation 
expense for 

the year 

Eliminated 
on disposal 

of assets

Other 
adjustments

Balance  
as at 31st 

March, 2015

Balance  
as at 31st 

March, 2015

Balance  
as at 31st 

March, 2014

Computer Software  3.18  5.23  -    -    8.41  23.06  16.58 

(Previous Year)  (1.15)  (2.04)  -    -    (3.18)

Depreciation and amortization expense:

Particulars  Balance as at  
31st March, 

2015

Balance as at  
31st March,  

2014
Depreciation and amortisation for the year on tangible assets as per 
Note 10 B

 415.18  331.77 

Amortisation for the year on intangible assets as per Note 10 D  5.23  2.04 
Depreciation and amortisation relating to continuing operations  420.41  333.81 
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Note 11  Non-current investments

` in Lacs
Particulars As at 31st March, 2015 As at 31st March, 2014

Quoted 
(Nos.)

Total Quoted 
(Nos.)

Total 

Investment (At Cost) : Trade
Investment in fully paid-up equity shares
a) Eveready Industries Limited of ` 5 each  271,337  244.48  271,337  244.48 
b) Mcleod Russel India Limited of ` 5 each  66,666  71.72  66,666  71.72 
c) Mcnally Bharat Engineering Company Ltd. of  

` 10 each - Refer Note 25.4  854,300  1,993.45  854,300  1,993.45 
Total - Trade  2,309.65  2,309.65 

Less: Provision for diminution in value of investments  600.00  520.48 
Total  1,709.65  1,789.17 

Aggregate amount of quoted investments  2,309.65  2,309.65 
Aggregate market value of listed and quoted 
investments

 1,579.33  911.02 

Note 12 Long-term loans and advances

`  In Lacs

Particulars As at 31st 
March, 2015

As at 31st  
March, 2014

Unsecured, considered good

(a) Security deposits  7.59  27.20 

(b) Advance Tax and TDS Receivable (net of provisions  ` 1327.12 lacs 
(As at 31 March, 2014  ` 1,273.08 lacs)  443.44  443.44 

Total  451.03  470.64 

Note 13 Other non-Current Assets

` In Lacs

Particulars As at  
31st March, 

2015

As at  
31st March, 

2014

(a) Retention Money (unsecured, considered good)  -    342.25 

(b) Balances with banks

 - Balances held as margin money against guarantees  24.80  18.45 

Total  24.80  360.70 

Notes:

Balances with banks held as margin money include ̀  24.80 lacs (previous year ̀  18.45 lacs) having residual maturity 
of more than 12 months. 
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Note 14  Inventories

(At lower of cost and net realisable value) ` In Lacs

Particulars As at  
31st March, 

2015

As at
31st March, 

2014
(a) Raw materials  647.79  536.56 
 Goods-in-transit  -    43.57 
 Sub-Total  647.79  580.13 
(b) Work-in-progress (Refer Note below)  346.40  195.63 
(c) Finished goods  37.16  115.25 
(d) Stores and spares  66.43  55.10 

Total  1,097.78  946.11 

Note: Details of inventory of work-in-progress

Dryers and Drying systems for Food Processing Industry and components  246.41  179.09 

Process Equipments and components thereof  99.99  16.54 

Total  346.40  195.63 

Note 15  Trade receivables

(` in Lacs)

Particulars As at  
31st March, 

2015

As at
31st March, 

2014

Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months from 
the date they were due for payment

 Unsecured, considered good  383.51  500.73 

 Doubtful  7.34  19.64 

 390.85  520.37 

 Less: Provision for doubtful trade receivables  7.34  19.64 

 383.51  500.73 

Other Trade receivables

 Unsecured, considered good  2,526.81  1,392.72 

Total  2,910.32  1,893.45 
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Note 16 Cash and Cash Equivalents

` in Lacs

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 

2015 

 As at 
 31st March, 

2014 

A. Cash and Cash Equivalents (As per AS-3 Cash Flow Statement)

 (a) Cash on hand  4.32  3.36 

 (b) Balances with banks

   - In current accounts  21.75  66.45 

 Total Cash and Cash Equivalents  26.07  69.81 

B. Other Bank Balances

 In earmarked accounts

 - Unpaid dividend accounts  12.56  12.56 

 - Balances held as Margin Money against guarantees & Other 
Commitments

 604.28  420.98 

 Total Other Bank Balances  616.84  433.54 

Total  642.91  503.35 

Note 17 Short-term loans and advances
`  In Lacs

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 

2015 

 As at  
31st March,  

2014 

Unsecured 

(a) Loans and advances to employees considered good  12.10  11.49 

(b) Prepaid expenses considered good  24.99  19.55 

(c ) Security Deposits  19.91  -   

(d) Balances with government authorities considered good

 (i) CENVAT credit receivable  22.06  207.33 

 (ii)  VAT credit receivable  603.78  631.83 

 (iii) Service Tax credit receivable  97.53  115.45 

 (iv) Sales Tax Appeal Payment  152.81  -   

 (v) MODVAT  4.88  -   

 (vi) Octroi Claim Receivable  6.08  7.21 

 (vii) Duty Drawback / Export Benefit Receivable  273.94  282.41 

 1,161.07  1,244.23 

(e) Advance to Vendors: 

 Considered good  724.91  437.68 

 Considered doubtful  30.98  30.98 

 755.89  468.66 

 Less: Provision for doubtful advances  30.98  30.98 

 724.91  437.68 

(f) Inter-corporate deposits 

 Considered good  335.00  450.00 

Total  2,277.98  2,162.95 
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Note 18 Other current assets ` In Lacs

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 

2015 

 As at 
 31st March, 

2014 
(a) Gross amount due from customers (Contract related activity)  4,925.08  3,503.81 
(b) Accruals 
 (i) Interest accrued on Bank deposits  3.87  1.44 
 (ii) Interest accrued on intercorporate deposits  357.27  294.27 
 (iii) Interest accrued on trade receivables  8.73  -   
(c) Others 
 (i) Forward Premium on Derivatives  13.96  15.96 
 (ii) Gratuity Fund  (Refer Note 26.2)  13.91  25.48 

Total  5,322.82  3,840.96 

Note 19 Revenue from operations 

` In Lacs
Particulars For the year 

ended 31st March, 
2015

For the year  
ended 31st March, 

2014
(a) Sale of Manufactured products / Contract Revenue 

(Refer Note (i) below) 
    - Sale of products  2,835.98  3,849.55 
    - Contract Revenue  9,559.80  7,701.40 
 Sub-total  12,395.78  11,550.95 
(b) Sale of services (Refer Note (ii) below)  50.85  289.02 
(c) Other operating revenues (Refer Note (iii) below)  191.24  335.79 

 12,637.87  12,175.76 
 Less:
(d) Excise duty  (569.29)  (524.95)

Total  12,068.58  11,650.81 

Note
` in Lacs

Particulars For the year 
ended 31st March, 

2015

For the year 
ended 31st March, 

2014

(i) Sale of Manufactured products / Contract Revenue comprises: 

 Dryers and Drying systems for Food Processing Industry and 
components

 2,456.80  3,380.61 

 Process Equipments and components thereof  9,938.98  8,170.34 

 Total  12,395.78  11,550.95 

(ii) Sale of services comprises:

 Erectioning and Commissioning  0.45  89.19 

 Annual Maintenance Services  20.29  21.26 

 Service Income - Deputation  23.82  3.88 

 Design and Engineering  6.29  174.69 

 Total  50.85  289.02 
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` In Lacs
Particulars For the year 

ended 31st March, 
2015

For the year  
ended 31st March, 

2014
(iii) Other operating revenues comprise:
 Sale of scrap  62.10  83.68 
 Sale of import license  30.40  -   
 Rental Income  -    2.27 
 Write back of Advance from Customer  -    249.84 
 Duty Drawback & Export Incentives Received  98.74  -   
 Total  191.24  335.79 

Note 20 Other income  ` in Lacs

Particulars For the year 
ended 31st March, 

2015

For the year 
ended 31st March, 

2014
(a) Interest income (Refer Note (i) below) 113.60 123.73
(b) Dividend income from long-term investments 6.02 13.21
(c) Net gain on foreign currency transactions and translation 146.94 101.48
(d) Other non-operating income (Refer Note (ii) below) 76.48 17.88

Total 343.04 256.30

` in Lacs
Particulars For the year 

ended 31st March, 
2015

For the year 
ended 31st March, 

2014
Note
(i) Interest income comprises:

Interest from banks on deposits 44.75 31.07
Interest on loans and advances 68.85 92.66
Total - Interest income 113.60  123.73 

(ii) Other non-operating income comprises:
Liabilities / provisions no longer required written back 76.48 17.81
Miscellaneous income  -   0.07
Total - Other non-operating income 76.48 17.88

Note 21.a Cost of materials consumed ` in Lacs

Particulars For the year 
ended 31st March, 

2015

For the year 
ended 31st March, 

2014
Opening stock  580.13  787.60 
Add: Purchases (including job work charges)  6,904.67  6,319.25 

 7,484.80  7,106.85 
Less: Closing stock  647.79  580.13 
Cost of material consumed  6,837.01  6,526.72 
 Material consumed comprises:
 Steel  1,764.48  2,088.59 
 Components & Others  3,467.28  3,002.38 
 Total  5,231.76  5,090.97 
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Note 21.b Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress ` in Lacs

Particulars For the year
ended 31st March, 

2015

For the year
ended 31st March, 

2014

Inventories at the end of the year:

Finished goods  37.17  115.26 

Work-in-progress  346.40  195.63 

 383.57  310.89 

Inventories at the beginning of the year:

Finished goods  115.26  131.96 

Work-in-progress  195.63  286.62 

 310.89  418.58 

Net (increase)/ decrease  (72.68)  107.69 

Note 22 Employee benefits expense ` in Lacs

Particulars For the year
ended 31st  March, 

2015

For the year
ended 31st March, 

2014

Salaries and wages  1,333.95  1,273.25 

Contributions to provident and other funds (Refer Note 26.2)  149.19  123.19 

Staff welfare expenses  51.89  61.79 

Total  1,535.03  1,458.23 

Note 23 Finance costs

` in Lacs
Particulars For the year

ended 31st  March, 
2015

For the year
ended 31st March, 

2014
(a) Interest expense on:
 (i) Borrowings  360.48  368.82 
 (ii) Trade payables  47.25  49.13 
(b) Other borrowing costs  138.40  95.89 

Total  546.13  513.84 

Note 24 Other Expenses  
` in Lacs

Particulars For the year ended 
31st March, 2015

For the year ended                   
31st  March, 2014

Consumption of Stores, Spares and Loose Tools (Indigenous)  202.72  175.36 
Subcontracting (Contract Labour)  224.82  71.94 
Power and fuel  96.26  100.05 
Rent including lease rentals (Refer Note 26.8)  25.94  28.10 
Repairs and maintenance - Buildings  12.16  2.76 
Repairs and maintenance - Machinery  28.54  20.71 
Repairs and maintenance - Others  116.15  89.92 
Royalty Charges  52.70  79.15 
Insurance  36.68  33.84 
Rates and taxes  2.45  5.64 
Bank Charges  59.52  46.03 
Travelling and conveyance  339.15  383.67 
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` in Lacs
Particulars For the year ended 

31st March, 2015
For the year ended                   
31st  March, 2014

Freight and forwarding (net)  368.16  379.24 
Sales commission  24.35  307.95 
Site Expenses  35.92  60.43 
Donations and contributions  6.00  5.00 
Legal and professional  145.46  124.13 
Liquidated Damages, Warranties and Rebates (Refer Note 26.7)  152.70  17.62 
Payments to auditors (Refer Note (i) below)  15.04  15.28 
Advances / Bad Debts written off  210.36  376.01 
Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts / Advances / Liquidated 
Damages written back

 (19.64)  190.72  (19.46)  356.55 

Provision for Bad Debts  7.34  -   
Adjustments to the carrying amount of long-term investments 
(Net)

 79.52  121.31 

Sales Tax  91.00  -   
Debit/ Credit Balances written off (Net)  0.50  -   
Intangible asset under development written off  29.76 
Miscellaneous expenses  220.04  216.47 

Total 2,563.60  2,641.15 

Notes:
Payments to the auditors comprises (net of service tax input 
credit, where applicable):
As auditors - statutory audit  11.50  11.50 
For other services  3.50  3.50 
Reimbursement of expenses  0.04  0.28 

 15.04  15.28 

Note 25 Additional information to the financial statements

` In Lacs
Particulars As at 

31st March, 2015
As at 

31st March, 2014

25.1 Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the 
extent not provided for)
Contingent liabilities

(a)   Letters of Credit and Bank Guarantees outstanding 
as at the year end. FDR of ` 629.08 lacs (previous 
year ̀  439.43 lacs) pledged with banks against the 
LC's and Bank Guarantees.

 3,712.57  2,441.17 

(b) Demand Notice from DGFT for non-fulfilling of 
export obligations. The Company expects no 
liability on this account.

 137.00  137.00 

(c) The Company is a party to litigation by certain ex-
employees in respect of claim for Superannuation 
fund dues/ retrenchment compensation arising 
around the year 2000-01. The Company has 
provided for the probable obligation. This is 
expected to materialize on resolution of the dispute.

- -

(d) The Company had received an order from Deputy 
Commissioner of Sales Tax, Mumbai for the year 
2008-09. The Company has filed an appeal with 
the Joint Commissioner of Sales Tax after payment 
of ` 1.50 lacs.

 30.75  30.75 
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Particulars As at 

31st March, 2015
As at 

31st March, 2014

(e) The Company had received a Demand Notice 
from the Maharashtra State VAT Authority for the 
assessment year 2005-06. The Company has filed 
an appeal against the said order.

 111.98  111.98 

(f) The Company had received a Demand Notice 
from the Central Sales Tax Authorities for the 
assessment year 2005-06. The Company has filed 
an appeal against the said order & has paid an 
amount of ` 242.30 lacs during current year & 
made a provision of ` 91 lacs in books.

 639.73  730.73 

 In respect of (e) & (f) above, the total demand 
of ` 842 lacs is on account of non-production of 
"C" Forms which were lost and certain errors in 
assessment.

(g) Last year the Company had received Demand 
Notice from the Income Tax Authorities disallowing 
certain expenses and selling commission expense 
for the assessment year 2011-12. 

 35.39  35.39 

(h) Other claims not acknowledged as debts.  0.80  0.80 

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2015

As at 
31st March, 2014

25.2 Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, 
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 
2006

(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier 
as at the end of the accounting year

 9.18  7.66 

(ii) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any 
supplier as at the end of the accounting year

 -    -   

(iii) The amount of interest paid along with the amounts 
of the payment made to the supplier beyond the 
appointed day 

 -    -   

(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the 
year

 -    0.05 

(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining 
unpaid at the end of the accounting year

 -    0.05 

(vi) The amount of further interest due and payable 
even in the succeeding year, until such date when 
the interest dues as above are actually paid

 -    -   

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified 
on the basis of information collected by the Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.
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25.3  Details on derivatives instruments and unhedged foreign currency exposures

Year Purpose No of Contracts Amount in 
FCY (in lacs)

Amount               
(` in Lacs)

A. Outstanding forward exchange contracts entered into by the Company in USD 
Current Firm Commitment 9  21.91  1,407.85 
Previous Firm Commitment 6  24.75  1,535.04 
EURO
Current Firm Commitment 2  4.00  284.16 
Previous Firm Commitment -  -    -   
B. The following are the foreign currency exposure not hedged as at the year end
Current Trade Receivables USD  15.61  971.01 

EURO  -    -   
Previous USD  12.60  753.31 

EURO  0.30  24.64 
Current Liabilities / Advance from Customer USD  14.73  941.20 

EURO  -    -   
Previous USD  46.11  2,784.66 

EURO  -    -   

25.4 The  Company holds investment in equity shares of Mcnally Bharat Engineering Company Limited (Book Value 
` 1,993.45 lacs) as strategic investment on a long term basis. The Company is of the view that the diminution 
in value of ` 1280.10 lacs (Previous Year ` 1409.95 lacs) in these investments  is temporary. Notwithstanding 
this, out of abundant caution, a total provision of ` 600 lacs (Previous Year ` 400 lacs) including ` 200 lacs 
(Previous Year ` 200 lacs) during the year is made in the books.

`  In Lacs

25.5 Value of imports calculated on CIF basis : For the year ended  
31st March, 2015

For the year ended  
31st March, 2014

Raw materials  199.07  413.14 

Components and spare parts  131.24  150.60 
Capital Goods  5.87  -   

Total  336.18  563.74 

25.6 Expenditure in foreign currency : For the year ended  
31st March, 2015

For the year ended  
31st March, 2014

Travelling  47.85  64.53 
Selling Commission  27.70  303.95 
Royalty  52.70  88.37 

Total  128.25  456.85 

25.7 Details of consumption of imported and 
indigenous items 

For the year ended  
31st March, 2015

For the year ended  
31st March, 2014

 ` in Lacs  %  ` in Lacs  % 

Raw materials and components consumed

Indigenous  4,895.90 93.58%  4,334.43 85.14%

Imported  335.86 6.42%  756.55 14.86%

Total  5,231.76 100.00%  5,090.98 100.00%
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` in Lacs 
25.8 Earnings in foreign exchange : For the year ended  

31st March, 2015
For the year ended  
31st March, 2014

FOB value of exports (Including amounts 
invoiced against work in progress)

 5,391.03  4,403.58 

Designing & Engineering Services  18.02  174.69 
Other charges recovered  77.65  4.00 

Total  5,486.70  4,582.27 

25.9 During the year, pursuant to the notification of Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 with effect from April 
1, 2014, the Company revised the estimated useful life of its assets to align the useful life with those specified 
in Schedule II. The details of previously applied depreciation rates / useful life are as follows:

Asset Type Previous depreciation 
rate / useful life

Revised useful life 
based on SLM

Buildings Factory Buildings  3.34% / 58 years  30 years 

Other than Factory 
Building - RCC

 3.34% / 58 years  60 years 

Other than Factory 
Building - Non-RCC

 3.34% / 58 years  30 years 

Carpeted Road - RCC  3.34% / 58 years  10 years 

Non-Carpeted Road - 
Non-RCC

 3.34% / 58 years  3 years 

Plant & Equipment Plant & Machinery  7.42%/ 20 years  15 years 

Electrical Installations  7.42%/ 20 years  10 years 

Furniture & Fixtures -  6.33% / 15 years  10 years 

Vehicles -  9.50% / 10 years  8 years 

Office Equipment Computers / Laptop  16.21% / 6 years  3 years 

Other  16.21% / 6 years  5 years 

Intangible Assets -  Amortization - 6 yrs  5 years 

 Pursuant to the transition provisions prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has 
fully depreciated the carrying value of assets, net of residual value, where the remaining useful life of the asset 
was determined to be nil as on April 1, 2014, and has adjusted an amount of ` 10.87 lacs (net of deferred tax 
of ` 4.86 lacs) against the opening Surplus balance in the Statement of Profit and Loss under Reserves and 
Surplus.

 The depreciation expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year is higher by ` 79.90 lacs consequent 
to the change in the useful life of the assets.

25.10 The remuneration of Shri Supriya Mukherjee, Managing Director was approved by the members by 
way of a special resolution passed at the Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) held on 30th September, 2014. 
Due to inadequate profits during the current year, the total managerial remuneration of ` 126.68 lacs  
(excluding exempted perquisites) is in excess of the limits specified under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 
2013 by ` 42.68 Lacs which is subject to the Central Government’s approval. 
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Note 26 Disclosures under Accounting Standards

Note 26.1

In accordance with requirements of Accounting Standard 7, Company has recognized unbilled revenue during the 
year in respect of high value, long delivery orders  which are delivered in parts over the execution period. The 
Unbilled revenue is calculated based on percentage of completion of individual contracts.

`  In Lacs

Details of contract revenue and costs For the year ended  
31st March, 2015

For the year ended  
31st March, 2014

Contract revenue recognised during the year  9,559.80  7,701.40 
For Contracts in Progress:
Aggregate of contract costs incurred and recognised profits (less 
recognised losses) upto the reporting date

 10,870.33  4,743.77 

Advances received  3,180.95  3,634.56 
Retention money  840.09  527.20 

Note 26.2

Employee benefit plans

Defined contribution plans 

The Company makes Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund contributions to defined contribution plans for 
qualifying employees. Under the Schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the 
payroll costs to fund the benefits.  The Company recognised ̀   79.29 lacs (Year ended 31 March, 2014 ̀   70.49 Lacs) 
for Provident Fund contributions and ` 33.43 lacs (Year ended 31 March, 2014  ` 34.51 lacs) for Superannuation 
Fund contributions in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The contributions payable to these plans by the Company 
are at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

The following table sets out the funded status of the Gratuity benefit and the amount recognised in the financial 
statements: 

` in Lacs
Particulars Year ended  

31st March, 2015
Year ended  

31st  March, 2014
Components of employer expense
Current service cost  13.88  12.83 
Interest cost  12.35  10.54 
Expected return on plan assets  (13.73)  (10.50)
Past service cost  -    -   
Actuarial losses/(gains)  4.69  (12.78)
Total expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss

 17.19  0.09 

Actual contribution and benefit payments for year 
Actual benefit payments  (9.17)  (7.73)
Actual contributions  5.64  31.22 
Net liability / (asset) recognised in the Balance Sheet 
Present value of defined benefit obligation  154.35  132.43 
Fair value of plan assets  168.26  157.88 
Net (asset) / liability recognised in the Balance Sheet  (13.91)  (25.48)
Change in defined benefit obligations (DBO) during the 
year 
Present value of DBO at beginning of the year  132.40  127.72 
Current service cost  13.88  12.83 
Interest cost  12.35  10.54 
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` in Lacs
Particulars Year ended  

31st March, 2015
Year ended  

31st  March, 2014
Actuarial (gains) / losses  4.88  (10.95)
Past service cost  -    -   
Benefits paid  (9.17)  (7.73)
Present value of DBO at the end of the year  154.35  132.40 
Change in fair value of assets during the year 
Plan assets at beginning of the year  157.88  122.06 
Expected return on plan assets  13.74  10.50 
Actuarial gain / (loss)  0.18  1.83 
Actual contributions  5.64  31.21 
Actual benefit payments  (9.17)  (7.73)
Plan assets at the end of the year  168.27  157.88 
Actuarial assumptions
Discount rate 7.95% 9.33%
Expected return on plan assets 7.95% 8.70%
Salary escalation 5.00% 5.00%
Attrition 2.00% 2.00%
Mortality table Indian Assured 

Lives Mortality 
(2006-08) 
(Ultimate)

Indian Assured  
Lives Mortality 

 (2006-08) 
(Ultimate)

Experience adjustments 2014-15 2013-14 2012-13 2011-12 2010-11
Experience gain / (loss) adjustments on plan liabilities (4.42) (4.49) 5.70 6.80 4.24 
Experience gain / (loss) adjustments on plan assets 0.18 1.83 1.68 1.54 1.20 

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities as at the Balance 
Sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.

The estimate of future salary increases considered, takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion, 
increments and other relevant factors.

100% of Plan Assets are invested in Group Gratuity Scheme offered by LIC of India, an insurance company.

26.3 Based on the guiding principles given in the Accounting Standard on ‘Segment Reporting’ (AS-17) issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the primary segment of the Company is business segment 
which comprises of Engineering Segment. As the Company operates in a single primary business segment, no 
segment information thereof is given.

 Segment information for secondary segment reporting (by geographical segments).

 The company has a customer base within and outside India.

Particulars India Outside India Total
Revenue 6,659.54 

 (7,068.66)
5,409.04 

 (4,578.27)
12,068.58 

 (11,646.93)
Segment Assets 19,920.19 

 (17,795.34)
971.01 

 (777.95)
20,891.20 

 (18,573.29)
Segment Liabilities 10,138.76 

 (6,380.24)
 941.20 

 (2,784.66)
11,079.96 

 (9,164.90)
Capital Expenditure 313.86 

 (64.65)
 -   
 -   

313.86 
 (64.65)

 Previous year figures are in brackets
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26.4 Related Party Disclosure:

` in Lacs

Sr. 
No.

Name of Related 
Party

Nature of 
Relationship

Nature of Transaction Transactions during the year

Current year Previous year

1 Mr. Supriya 
Mukherjee - 
Managing Director

Key 
Management 
Personnel

Managerial Remuneration 146.48  144.37 

Payable as on 31st March  22.37  15.79 

2 Mr. A. Suresh - VP- 
Finance & Chief 
Financial Officer

Key 
Management 
Personnel

Remuneration  41.10  37.37 

Payable as on 31st March  1.89  1.55 

3 Williamson Magor 
& Co. Ltd.

Company 
having 
significant 
influence

Service Charges  24.00  24.00 

Rent  16.94  17.50 

Electricity Expenses  5.95  4.48 

Payable as on 31st March  -    4.53 

26.5 Earnings Per Share :
` in Lacs 

Earning Per Share (Basic / Diluted) Current year Previous year

A. (Loss) / Profit after Tax  413.76  238.67 

B. Weighed Average Number of Equity Shares used (in Lacs)  132.56  132.56 

C. Basic / Diluted Earnings per Share (A/B) (In `)  3.12  1.80 

D. Face Value Per Equity Share (In `)  10.00  10.00 

26.6 Deferred tax (liability) / asset
` In Lacs

Particulars As at 
31st March,2015

As at 
31st March,2014

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liability
On difference between book balance and tax balance of fixed assets  (411.94)  (344.99)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liability  (411.94)  (344.99)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Expenses allowable on payment basis under Income Tax Act  285.90  273.89 
Unabsorbed Depreciation  126.04  71.10 
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets  411.94  344.99 
Net Deferred Tax Asset  -    -   

 The Company has recognised deferred tax asset on unabsorbed depreciation to the extent of the corresponding 
deferred tax liability on the difference between the book balance and the written down value of fixed assets 
under Income Tax.

26.7 Disclosure of provisions as required by Accounting Standard 29
 ` in Lacs 

Description of Provision Opening 
Balance

Amount used 
during the 

year

Excess 
Provision 

Written back

Provisions 
made during 

the year

Closing  
Balance

Provision for Contingencies 
(Claims under litigation)*

204.41 11.50  - 0.00 192.91 
(226.83) (22.41)  (-)  (-) (204.42)

Provision for Liquidated 
Damages / Warranties 

5.75  -    -    152.20 157.95 
(24.33) (18.58)  (-)  (-) (5.75)

 (Figures for the previous year are shown in bracket)

 * Refer Note 25.1(c). 
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 Consequent to closure of Baroda Factory in year 2003, provision was made for additional retrenchment 
compensation in respect of 97 employees amounting to ` 45.80 lacs. Out of 97 employees, 50 had preferred 
an appeal before the labour court in Baroda. A settlement was arrived with the above workers before the labour 
court in Baroda and  an amount  of ` 18.50 lacs was paid last year. During current  year 42 employees agreed 
for settlement and accordingly an amount  ` 11.50 lacs has been paid as full and final settlement.

26.8 Operating Leases :

 Lease payments recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss : ` 25.94 lacs (Previous Year ` 28.10 lacs).

Note  27 

 The total amount incurred on Research and Development activities during the year amount to ` 59.57 lacs 
(Previous Year  ` 65.99 lacs)

Note  28

 Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current 
year’s classification / disclosure.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Aditya Khaitan
Chairman
(DIN - 00023788) 

Supriya Mukherjee 
Managing Director 
(DIN - 00127747)  

A. Suresh
VP-Finance & Chief Financial Officer

Arvind Kumar Bajoria 
Company Secretary 

Place : Kolkata

Date : 28th May 2015
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Notice of 27th AGM 

REGD. OFFICE : Four Mangoe Lane, Surendra Mohan Ghosh Sarani, Kolkata - 700 001.

Website : www.kilburnengg.com      ( A Williamson Magor Group Enterprise )

CIN : L24232WB1987PLC042956

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
NOTICE is hereby given that the Twenty-Seventh Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on Monday, 
28th September, 2015 at 10:00 A.M.. at Williamson Magor Hall, The Palladian Lounge, The Bengal Chamber of 
Commerce & Industry, 6, Netaji Subhash Road, Kolkata - 700 001 to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.	 To	receive,	consider	and	adopt	the	Audited	Statement	of	Profit	and	Loss,	Cash	Flow	Statement	for	the	year	
ended 31st March, 2015 and Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2015, Auditors’ Report thereon and Directors’ 
Report along with Management Discussion & Analysis Report and Report on Corporate Governance for the year 
ended 31st March, 2015.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Amritanshu Khaitan (holding DIN : 00213413), who retires by rotation and 
being eligible, offers himself for reappointment.

3.  To ratify the appointment of Statutory Auditors – M/s. Deloitte Haskins & Sells, Chartered Accountants (Firm’s 
Registration no. : 117364W) upto the conclusion of next Annual General Meeting.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

To	consider	and,	if	thought	fit,	to	pass	the	following	Resolutions:-

4.     As an Ordinary Resolution - appointment of Mr. Aditya Khaitan as Director, liable to retire by 
rotation:

 “RESOLVED that Mr. Aditya Khaitan (holding DIN: 00023788), a Non-Executive Director, be and is hereby 
appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation in accordance with the provisions of Section 
152 of the Companies Act, 2013.”

5.     As an Ordinary Resolution  -   appointment of Mrs. Priya Saran Chaudhri as Director liable to  retire 
by rotation:

 “RESOLVED that Mrs. Priya Saran Chaudhri (holding DIN: 00704863 ), a Non-Executive Director, be and is 
hereby appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013.”

6.    As a Special Resolution  -  Waiver of Recovery of excess remuneration paid to Managing  Director 
during 2014 – 15 :

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read 
with the applicable provisions of Schedule  V to the Act , the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and other statutory provisions as may be applicable  and subject to such 
approvals, if any, as may be required, approval of the Members be and is hereby accorded to the Board of 
Directors of the Company to waive recovery of excess remuneration amounting to Rs. 42.68 Lacs paid to  
Mr. Supriya Mukherjee as the Managing Director of the Company during the Financial Year ended 31st March, 
2015, over and above the limit prescribed under the provisions of Section 197 of the Act which is within the 
limits approved by the Members in their Twenty sixth Annual General Meeting held on 30th September, 2014,  
and that subject to the approval of the Central Government, the excess Managerial Remuneration of Rs. 42.68 
Lacs		paid	to	Mr.	Supriya	Mukherjee,	Managing	Director,	during	the	financial	year	ended	31st March, 2015 be 
and is hereby approved.

 FURTHER RESOLVED that the  Board of Directors,  Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board and 
the Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and 
things as may be considered necessary or desirable to give effect to this Resolution.”

7.    As a Special Resolution  -  Authorisation for payment of remuneration to Managing Director 
exceeding the limit for remuneration allowed u/s 197 of The Companies Act, 2013 :

 “RESOLVED THAT further to the Resolution passed by the Members of the Company at their Twenty Sixth 
Annual General Meeting held on 30th September, 2014 according their consent to the re-appointment (including 
remuneration) of Mr. Supriya Mukherjee as the Managing Director of the Company for a period of 3 years with 
effect from 1st April, 2014 and in accordance with the provisions of Sections 196,197,198 and the applicable 
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provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act’) read with the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act and 
subject	 to	 the	approval	of	 the	Central	Government	subject	 to	such	modification	and	conditions	as	may	be	
prescribed by the Central Government while granting such approval, the approval of the Company be and is 
hereby accorded to the payment of the remuneration to Mr. Supriya Mukherjee as approved by the Members at 
their Twenty Sixth Annual General Meeting, the details of which are given in the Statement pursuant to Section 
102	of	the	Act	attached	to	this	Notice	as	minimum	remuneration	in	the	event	of	loss	or	inadequacy	of		profit		
made	the	Company	in	any	financial	year/s	during	his	tenure	i.e.	from	1st April, 2014 till 31st March, 2017.

 FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Directors, Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board and 
the Company Secretary be and are hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be 
considered necessary or  desirable to give effect to this Resolution.”

8.    As an Ordinary Resolution - Ratification of remuneration of Cost Auditor :

 “RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act,	2013,	and	the	Rules	thereof,	(including	any	statutory	modification(s)	or	re-enactment	thereof	for	the	time	
being in force), the appointment and remuneration of the Cost Auditors, M/s. D. Sabyasachi & Co., for auditing 
the Cost Accounts of the Company in respect of the products, as may be applicable, for the year ending March 
31, 2016, as approved by the Board of Directors on the recommendation of the Audit Committee and as set 
out	in	the	Explanatory	Statement	in	respect	of	this	item	of	business,	be	and	is	hereby	ratified.”

     By Order of the Board of Directors

Kolkata    Arvind Bajoria
13th August, 2015  Company Secretary

NOTES:

I. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY OR PROXIES 
TO ATTEND AND VOTE THEREAT INSTEAD OF HIMSELF. A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. 
PROXY FORMS IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE MUST BE RECEIVED BY THE COMPANY AT THE REGISTERED 
OFFICE AT LEAST 48 HOURS BEFORE THE MEETING. A PROXY / PROXIES SO APPOINTED SHALL HAVE NO 
RIGHT TO SPEAK AT THE MEETING.

 In terms of Rule 19 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, a person can act as a 
proxy	on	behalf	of	members	not	exceeding	fifty	and	holding	in	the	aggregate	not	more	than	ten	percent	of	the	
total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than ten percent of the total 
share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall 
not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder. 

II. Voting through electronic means - instructions:

 In compliance with Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rule, 2014, as amended, and Clause 35B of the Listing Agreement, the Company is pleased 
to provide e-voting facility to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the Annual General 
Meeting (AGM). The Company has engaged the services of Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) 
to provide the e-voting facilities. The facility for voting, through ballot paper, will also be made available at 
the AGM and the Members attending the AGM who have not already cast their votes by remote e-voting 
shall be able to exercise their right at the AGM through ballot paper. Members who have cast their votes by 
remote e-voting prior to the AGM may attend the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their votes again. The 
instructions for e-voting are given in a separate sheet attached hereto forming part of the Notice.

 The e-voting particulars are being communicated through the Attendance Slip cum Proxy Form.

 1.  Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy 
(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution / Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen 
signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote through e-mail at arvind_
bajoria@kilburnengg.com or mdpl@cal.vsnl.net.in or scrutinizeraklabh@gmail.com with a copy marked to 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com before September 25, 2015 without which the vote shall not be treated 
as valid.

 2.  In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, please contact the Company or Registrar & 
Share Transfer Agents or send mail to arvind_bajoria@kilburnengg.com or mdpl@cal.vsnl.net.in. You may 
also send mail to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or refer to the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) 
and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.co.in.

 3.  The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital 
of the Company held on the cut-off date of 21st September, 2015. The e-Voting period shall be from 10.00 
a.m. (1ST) on 25th September 2015 to 5.00 p.m.(1ST) on 27th September 2015.
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 4.  Mr. A. K. Labh, Practicing Company Secretary (FCS : 4848) of M/s. A.K. Labh & Co., Company Secretaries, 
has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner, 
whose e-mail address is aklabhcs@gmail.com.

 5.  The Scrutinizer shall within a period not exceeding three (3) working days from the conclusion of the 
e-voting period, unblock the votes in the presence of at least two (2) witnesses not in the employment of 
the Company and make a Scrutinizer’s Report of the votes cast in favour or against, if any, forthwith to 
the Chairman of the Company.

 6.  The Results shall be declared on or after the AGM of the Company. The Results declared alongwith the 
Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website www.kilburnengg.com and on the website 
of CDSL within two (2) days of passing of the resolutions at the AGM of the Company.

III. The details of Directors seeking re-appointment at this Annual General Meeting as required under Clause 49 of 
the Listing Agreement is annexed hereto.

IV. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to notify immediately change of address, transfer, 
demat, ECS credit request, if any, to the Registrars and Transfer Agents of the Company i.e. M/s Maheshwari 
Datamatics Pvt. Ltd. at 6, Mangoe lane, Surendra Mohan Ghosh Sarani, 2nd Floor, Kolkata - 700 001.  
Tel No.: (033) 2243 5809 / 5029; 2248 2248; Fax No.: (033) 2248 4787; e-mail : mdpl@cal.vsnl.net.in or 
mdpldc@yahoo.com or skchaubey@mdpl.in.

V. The Notice of the 27th AGM and instructions for e-voting, along with the Attendance slip and Proxy form, is 
being sent by electronic mode to all Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company / 
Depository Participant(s), unless a Member has requested for a hard copy of the same. For members who have 
not registered their email addresses, physical copies of the documents are being sent by the permitted mode

VI. Members may also note that the Notice of the 27th AGM and the Annual Report 2014-15 will be available on the 
Company’s website, www.kilburnengg.com.

VII. Members holding shares in demat mode are requested to notify any change in address, Bank Details, ECS 
Credit request to their respective depository participants and make sure that such changes are recorded by 
them.

VIII. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Monday, 21st 
September, 2015 to Monday, 28th September, 2015 (both days inclusive).  Duly executed and stamped transfer 
deeds,	along	with	the	relative	Share	Certificates,	should	be	submitted	to	the	Company’s	Registrar	&	Share	
Transfer Agents before the closure of the Register of Members for registration of transfers.

IX. The members who have not encashed their Dividend warrants or who have not received the Dividend for the 
FY 2008-09, FY 2009-10 and FY 2010-11 should approach the Registrars & Transfer Agents of the Company. 
It may be noted that the amount of dividend remaining unclaimed for a period of Seven (7) years shall 
be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund as per the provisions of Section 205C of the 
Companies Act, 1956. 

X.	 Members	/	Proxies	should	bring	 the	Attendance	Slip	sent	herewith,	duly	filled	 in,	 for	attending	 the	Annual	
General Meeting. They are also requested to bring their copies of the Annual Report ( mailed separately to all 
the members ) to the meeting.

XI.	 Queries	on	accounts,	if	any,	should	reach	the	Registered	Office	of	the	Company	at	least	seven	days	before	the	
meeting.

XII. Pursuant to provisions to section 101 read with other applicable provisions of The Companies Act, 2013, 
we propose to send all the documents to be sent to Shareholders like General Meeting Notices (including 
AGM), Audited Financial Statements, Directors’ Report, Auditors’ Report, etc. in electronic form, to their e-mail 
address. 

 Members holding shares in physical form are requested to intimate / update their email address to / with  
M/s Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt. Ltd. at 6, Mangoe lane, Surendra Mohan Ghosh Sarani, 2nd Floor,  
Kolkata - 700 001. Those holding shares in demat mode are requested to intimate / update their email address 
to / with their depository participants. We request your whole-hearted support to this initiative by co-operating 
the Company in implementing this. 

XIII. The Securities & Exchange Board of India ( SEBI ) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number 
(PAN) by every participant in securities market transaction and off-market/private transaction including, 
transfer of shares held in physical form, deletion of name of the deceased shareholder(s), where the shares 
are held in the name of two or more shareholders, transmission of shares to the legal heir(s), where deceased 
shareholder was the sole holder of shares and transposition of shares - when there is a change in the order of 
names in which physical shares are held jointly in the names of two or more shareholders.

     By Order of the Board of Directors

Kolkata    Arvind Bajoria
13th August, 2015  Company Secretary
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PARTICULARS OF THE DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT / RE-APPOINTMENT IN THE ANNUAL 
GENERAL MEETING, AS REQUIRED PURSUANT TO CLAUSE 49 OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT :

Name of Director Mr. Aditya Khaitan Mrs. Priya Saran Chaudhri

Type Non Executive Director Non Executive Director

Date of Birth 30-01-1968 22-09-1969

Date of Appointment 31-03-2015 14-11-2014

Qualification B. Com. (Hons) Graduation (with Double major) U.S.

No. of Equity Shares held Nil Nil

Expertise	in	Specific	
Functional area

He hails from a renowned family of 
industrialists and has industry experience as 
a successful businessman who has an active 
interest in the activities of the Company.

She is the managing director of KCT 
Trading Pvt. Limited and has a vast 
exposure in business management and 
corporate affairs

Directorships held in other 
Companies other than 
foreign companies  
(as on 31-03-2015)

Eveready Industries India Ltd.
McLeod Russel India Ltd.
McNally Bharat Engineering Co. Ltd.
Williamson Magor & Co. Ltd.
Williamson Financial Services Ltd.                  
Royal Calcutta Golf Club 
Babcock Borsig Limited                                 
Prana Lifestyle P. Ltd.
D1 Williamson Magor Bio Fuel Limited

KCT Trading Private Limited   (M.D.)
Shree Durga Agencies Limited
Arham Vyapaar Private Limited

Particulars of Committee 
Chairmanship / Membership 
held in other Companies

Mcleod Russel India Limited
Member – Audit Committee

Babcock Borsig Limited
Member – Audit Committee
Member – Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee

D1 Williamson Magor Bio Fuel Limited
Chairman – Audit Committee
Chairman- Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee

Shree Durga Agencies Limited
Member - Audit Committee 
Member - Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee 

Name of Director Mr. Amritanshu Khaitan

Type Non-executive Director

Date of Birth 07/11/1982

Qualification MBA (London Business School)

No. of Equity Shares held Nil

Expertise	in	Specific	
Functional area

Mr. Amritanshu Khaitan hails from a renowned family industrialists. He is presently the 
Managing Director of Eveready Industries India Limited and also on the Boards of several 
other listed and unlisted companies.

Directorships held in other 
Companies other than 
foreign companies 
(as on 31-03-2015 )

Eveready Industries India Limited
Williamson Financial Services Limited
Indian Chamber of Commerce, Calcutta
Ichamati Investments Ltd.
Williamson Magor & Co. Limited
Queens Park Property Co. Ltd.
United Machine Co. Ltd.
Prana Lifestyle Pvt. Ltd.

Mcleod Russel India Limited
McNally Bharat Engg. Co. Ltd.

Particulars of Committee 
Chairmanship / Membership 
held in other Companies

N. A.

Shareholding in the 
Company

NIL
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 4

Mr. Aditya Khaitan is a promoter, Non-Executive Director of the Company in terms of Clause 49 of the Listing 
Agreement with the Stock Exchanges and was appointed by Board on 31st March, 2015 vide resolution passed by 
circulation,	as	an	additional	director	to	hold	office	upto	the	conclusion	of	ensuing	general	meeting.

The Company has received a notice in terms of Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from a Member of the 
Company proposing the appointment of Mr. Khaitan as a Director of the Company.  In terms of Section 152 of the 
Act,	Mr.	Khaitan	has	furnished	a	declaration	to	the	effect	that	he	is	not	disqualified	to	become	a	Director	under	the	
Act and also, consented to act as a Director of the Company, if appointed.

In terms of Section 152 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), Mr. Aditya 
Khaitan, is proposed to be appointed as Director liable to retire by rotation.  he will be entitled to receive sitting fees 
for attending the Board Meetings of Company and will be reimbursed any travelling expenses incurred towards the 
same.

Mr. Aditya Khaitan, a renowned industrialist is Brother of ( Late ) Mr. Deepak Khaitan and uncle of Mr. Amritanshu 
Khaitan and except Mr. Aditya Khaitan and Mr. Amritanshu Khaitan, none of the Directors and Key Managerial 
Personnel	of	the	Company	and	their	relatives	is	concerned	or	interested,	financial	or	otherwise,	in	their	respective	
resolutions set out at Item No. 4.

Item No. 5

Mrs. Priya Saran Chaudhri is Non-Executive Director of the Company in terms of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement 
with the Stock Exchanges and was appointed by Board as an additional director in their meeting held on 14th 
November,	2014	to	hold	office	upto	the	conclusion	of	ensuing	general	meeting.

In terms of Section 152 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), Mrs. Priya Saran 
Chaudhri, is proposed to be appointed as Director liable to retire by rotation.  She will be entitled to receive sitting 
fees for attending the Board Meetings of Company and will be reimbursed any travelling expenses incurred towards 
the same.

The Company has received a notice in terms of Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from a Member of the 
Company proposing the appointment of Mrs. Priya Saran Chaudhri as a Director of the Company.  In terms of Section 
152	of	 the	Act,	Mrs.	Chaudhri	has	 furnished	a	declaration	to	the	effect	that	she	 is	not	disqualified	to	become	a	
Director under the Act and also, consented to act as a Director of the Company, if appointed.

Except Mrs. Priya Saran Chaudhri being individual appointee(s), none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 
of	the	Company	and	their	relatives	is	concerned	or	interested,	financial	or	otherwise,	in	their	respective	resolutions	
set out at Item No. 5.

Item No. 6 & 7

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on February 14, 2014, resolved to appoint Mr. Supriya Mukherjee as 
Managing Director of the Company for a period of three years with effect from April 1, 2014 on the following principal 
terms and conditions pursuant to the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule V to the 
said Act and subject to the approval of the shareholders in a General Meeting and/or the Central Government 
approval as may be necessary.  The said terms and conditions were approved by the members by passing special 
resolution in Annual General Meeting held on 30th September, 2014.

Salary :  Rs. 4,50,000 per month with such revisions that may be approved by the Board from time to time in the 
salary grade of Rs.4,50,000 to Rs.6,00,000 per month.

Bonus : Equivalent to six month’s salary in a year.

Perquisites:

Housing : Free furnished accommodation with the cost of gas, electricity, water, soft furnishings and telephone 
being borne by the Company. Cost of personal long distance calls will be borne by Mr. Mukherjee. In case no 
accommodation is provided to Mr. Mukherjee, he will be paid House Rent Allowance at the rate of 60% of his salary.

Car : Company car with driver under the Company’s Scheme applicable for senior executive staff of the Company.

Medical Reimbursement for self, spouse, dependent children and dependent parents, at actuals including cost of 
medical insurance.
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Leave Travel Assistance  :  The amount of LTA per year is Rs. 4,50,000/- for self and family once in a year.  As per 
applicable rules of the Company, a minimum 15 days Privilege Leave must be availed to be eligible for LTA.

Club Fees : Reimbursement of club fees for existing membership of clubs.  He may be paid enrolment fee in respect 
of any new club membership, if approved by the Board of Directors.

Leave Encashment :  Mr. Mukherjee is entitled to 30 days’ leave per annum ( Privilege Leave ) for every completed 
year of service, which may be accumulated upto a maximum of 300 days and encashed as per basic salary received 
at the end of tenure.

Others 

Personal Accident Insurance and other perquisites which are applicable to senior executive staff of the

Company shall also apply to Mr. Mukherjee.

Other Allowances : A special allowance of Rs. 50,000 per month. In addition other allowances may be paid as may 
be decided by the Board from time to time for payment in lumpsum or by way of periodic payments.

Retiral	Benefits	:		Contributions	to	Provident	Fund,	Gratuity	Fund	and	Pension	Fund	as	per	rules	of	the	Company.

Minimum	Remuneration	:		In	the	event	of	loss	or	inadequacy	of	profits	in	any	financial	year	during	the	tenure	of	
Mr. Mukherjee, Mr. Mukherjee will be paid the remuneration as above as minimum remuneration subject to the 
provisions of Section II of Part II of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and/or subject to the approval of the 
Central Government if necessary, notwithstanding the limits prescribed in Section II of Part II of Schedule V of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

Leave :  Mr. Mukherjee will be entitled to leave with full pay, as per applicable rules of the Company.

Nature of Duties :  Mr. Mukherjee will devote his whole time and attention to the business and affairs of the Company 
and perform such duties and exercise such powers as may be assigned to him from time to time by the Board.

Sitting Fees :  Mr. Mukherjee shall not be entitled to any sitting fees for attending meetings of the Board of Directors 
or Committees thereof.

The afore-mentioned appointment of Mr. Mukherjee and the terms as to remuneration requires the approval of the 
Members in general meeting by Special Resolution. The above terms as to remuneration have been approved by the 
Remuneration Committee of the Board and are subject to the approval of Central Government.

The Resolution(s) set out in Item No.  is accordingly proposed to be passed by way of a Special Resolution and the 
Board recommends the same for approval of the Members.

Except Mr. Mukherjee, being the appointee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and 
their	relatives	is	concerned	or	interested,	financial	or	otherwise,	in	the	resolution	set	out	at	Item	No.	.

INFORMATION IN TERMS OF SCHEDULE V TO THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

I.  General Information :

1. Nature of Industry :  Engineering

2. Date of commencement of  : The Company was incorporated in 1987 and

        Commercial production  had already commenced production

3. Financial performance based  
on given indicators : (For the year ended March 31, 2014)

Particulars Rs. In Lacs
Sales and other Income 11907.11
Gross Profit before interest, finance charges and depreciation 1173.32
Interest & Finance Charges 513.84
Depreciation 333.81
Profit before Tax 325.67
Tax Expenses 87.00
Profit after Tax 238.67
Balance brought forward from previous year 5165.77
Amount available for appropriation 5404.44
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 Export Performance and net foreign exchange earnings:

Export
(FOB value)
Rs. Crores 

Net Foreign
Exchange Earnings

Rs. Crores

2014-2015 53.91 54.87

2013-2014 44.04 45.82

2012-2013 22.81 23.01

2011-2012 26.00 26.54
   

4.  Foreign Investments or  : Foreign Collaborators are as following : 
collaborators, if any  i.  M/s. Nara Machinery Co. Ltd. (Japan)

      ii. M/s. Carrier Vibrating Equipment Inc (USA)

 Investment in subsidiaries  
during 2013-14  -  Nil

 Investment in Share Capital by  
Foreign Companies  -  Nil

II.  Information about the appointee / director

 1. Background Details

  Name of Director  : Mr. Supriya Mukherjee

  Age    : 60 years

	 	 Qualification		 :	 B.Com	(Hons.),	FCA

	 	 Expertise	and	Experience	in	specific	functional	areas:

	 	 Mr.	Mukherjee	has	over	37	years	of	experience	in	Corporate	Management	in	diverse	fields	-	both	in	India	
and abroad. He is responsible for the overall operational management of the Company.

 2. Past remuneration: 

Particulars 2014-15
(`)

2013-14
(`)

2012-13
(`)

Salary 54,00,000 54,00,000 54,00,000

Perquisite 2,45,849 67,855 58,520

Commission, bonus and allowances 69,90,000 69,90,000 69,90,000

Others	Including	retiral	benefits 20,17,462 20,17,462 20,17,462

  As a Managing Director, Mr. Mukherjee has been receiving remuneration as approved by the Members. 
His remuneration during the year ended March 31, 2014 and March 31, 2015 which comprised of salary,  
perquisites, allowances and contribution to retiral funds was as mentioned above. As per provisions of 
Part – II (section IV) of Schedule V of The Companies Act, 2013, employer’s contribution to Provident 
Fund, Gratuity and Superannuation Fund totalling to Rs. 20,17,462 annually is not to be included in the 
computation of managerial remuneration under Schedule V.

 3. Recognition and Awards:

  Mr. Mukherjee’s dedicated efforts for the long term & sustainable growth of the Company has been 
well recognised and he guided the Company to emerge as a leader in the country in providing critically 
customised drying solutions for diverse applications. He has been instrumental in setting up few years 
back a World Class Manufacturing Complex for the Company in Saravali, near Thane, Maharashtra.  

	 	 He	has	enabled	the	Company	to	secure	for	the	first	time	in	recent	years	very	large	export	orders	against	
global competition for designing, manufacturing & commissioning critically customised drying systems in 
Carbon Black, Limestone / Dolomite Industries etc. Similarly, in certain segments in the domestic market 
the Company being recognised as preferred supplier, started securing large value orders from Chemical / 
Fertilizer Industries.
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	 	 Besides,	the	company	in	recent	years	has	successfully	introduced	a	couple	of	significant	drying	solutions	
for	industries,	viz.	Steel,	Pharmaceutical,	Textile,	some	specified	Minerals,	Tea	etc.

 4. Job profile and his suitability:

  Mr. Mukherjee is Managing Director of the Company, responsible for the overall operational management 
of	the	Company.	The	Board	is	of	the	opinion	that	Mr.	Mukherjee	has	the	requisite	qualifications,	expertise	
and experience for the job he is holding.

 5. Remuneration proposed:

  Already given in the Explanatory Statement.

  Pecuniary and other relationships:

  Except for receiving remuneration as a Managing Director, Mr. Mukherjee has no pecuniary relationship 
with the Company. He is not related to any other managerial personnel of the Company.

 6. Comparative remuneration profile with respect to industry, size of the Company, profile of 
position and person :

  Mr. Mukherjee’s proposed remuneration matches his background, proven capabilities and vast experience 
in Industries.  His remuneration is commensurate with the norms in the industry having regard to the 
size, complexities of this Company and the job responsibilities.

III.  Other Information

 1. Reasons of loss or inadequate profits:

	 	 The	company	had	a	net	profit	of	Rs.	4.14	Crores	during	the	year	2014-15	and	Rs.	2.38	Crores	during	the	
year	2013-	14.		Due	to	general	slowdown	in	the	economy	in	past	years,	order	inflow	was	restricted	for	the	
Company. In 2013-14 and  subsequent years, prospects in capital goods sector had shown improvement 
and due to Central Govt.’s priority on building new infrastructure company expects to have a good top line 
and bottom line in the coming years.

 2. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for Improvement 

  Company has executed orders for various critically customised  process equipments and industrial dryers 
for reputed customers across various industries all around the world and with the successful running of 
these equipments, Company is expected to earn more high value orders in the coming years.  Additionally, 
company	 is	 involved	 in	developing	new	products	which	are	expected	to	contribute	significantly	 to	 the	
topline and bottomline.

 3. Expected Increase in Productivity and profitability in measurable Terms.

  Company is actively involved in entering into technical collaborations with global players and also 
developing new products to broaden the scope of products offered by the Company.  However, the exact 
increase	in	production	and	profitability	due	to	these	initiatives	cannot	be	measured.

IV.  Disclosures

 Information on the remuneration package of the managerial personnel:

	 The	shareholders	are	notified	of	the	remuneration	package	through	explanatory	statements	annexed	to	the	
Notice of Meetings in which proposals for their appointments are placed before the shareholders.

 Disclosures on remuneration package and other terms of Directors under ‘Corporate Governance’ Report:

 The Corporate Governance Report forms a part of the Annual Report for the year and the remuneration package 
and other terms applicable to the Directors have been disclosed therein.

 Memorandum of Interest:

 Except Mr. Mukherjee, being an appointee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company 
and	their	relatives	is	concerned	or	interested,	financial	or	otherwise,	in	the	resolution	set	out	at	Item	No.	6	&	7.
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Item No. 8

The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee has approved the appointment of  
M/s. D. Sabyasachi & Company, Cost Accountants, as Cost Auditors of the Company, subject to approval(s) as may 
be necessary, for auditing the cost accounts of the Company relating to any products as may be applicable for the 
financial	year	2015	-16	at	a	remuneration	of	Rs.	40,000/-	and	service	tax	at	the	applicable	rate	and	reimbursement	
of out of pocket expenses at actuals.  In terms of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Audit	and	Auditors)	Rules,	2014,	the	remuneration	payable	to	the	Cost	Auditors	is	to	be	ratified	by	the	Shareholders	
of the Company.

The Board recommends the resolution set out at Item No. 8 for the approval of the Members of the Company.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is concerned or interested, 
financial	or	otherwise,	in	the	resolution	set	out	at	Item	No.	8.

     By Order of the Board of Directors

Kolkata    Arvind Bajoria

13th August, 2015  Company Secretary
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Route Map of the Venue of 27th Annual General Meeting



ATTENDANCE SLIP
(To be presented at the entrance)

Kilburn Engineering Limited
CIN : L24232WB1987PLC042956

Registered Office: Four Mangoe Lane, Surendra Mohan Ghosh Sarani, Kolkata-700001
TEL: 033-2231-3337, 3450 FAX: 91-33-2231-4768

E-Mail: administrator@kilburnengg.oom; Website: www.kilburnengg.oom

Folio No/Client ID & DP ld:

27th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING on Monday, 28th September, 2015 at 10.00 a.m. at Williamson Magor Hall, The Palladian 
Lounge, The Bengal Chamber of Commerce & Industry, 6, Netaji Subhash Road, Kolkata - 700 001.
•	 A	member/proxy	wishing	to	attend	the	Meeting	must	complete	lhis	Attendance	Slip	before	coming	to	the	Meeting	and	hand	it	

over at lhe enlrance.
•	 If	you	intend	to	appoint	a	proxy,	please	complete	the	Proxy	Form	and	deposit	it	at	lhe	Company’s	Registered	Office,	at	least	48	

hours before the Meeting.
•	 Please	bring	your	copy	of	the	Annual	Report	to	the	Meeting.
I record my presence at the 27th Annual General Meeting

Name of Proxy in BLOCK LETTERS : ____________________________________
(If the Proxy attends instead of the Member) 

______________________
Signature of Member/Proxy

Form No.MGT-11
Proxy Form

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN : L24232WB1987PLC042956

Name of the Company : Kilburn Engineering Limited

Registered	Office	 :	 Four	Mangoe	Lane,	Surendra	Mohan	Ghosh	Saran!,	Kolkata-700001

Name of the Member(s) :

Registered address :

E-mail ld :

Folio No./Ciient ld & DP. ld :

I/We, being the member(s) of ………………………………………… shares of the above name Company, hereby appoint

1. Name: ...................................................................................................................................................................

 Address:.............................................................................................................................................

 E mail: ........................................................... Signature: ..................................................... or failing him/her

2. Name: ...................................................................................................................................................................

 Address:.............................................................................................................................................

 E mail: ........................................................... Signature: ..................................................... or failing him/her

3. Name: ...................................................................................................................................................................

 Address:.............................................................................................................................................

 E mail: ........................................................... Signature: .....................................................



as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Twenty-Seventh Annual General Meeting 
of the Company on Monday, 28th September, 2015 at 10:00 A.M. at Williamson Magor Hall, The Palladian Lounge, The Bengal 
Chamber of Commerce & Industry, 6, Netaji Subhash Road, Kolkata 700 001 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such 
Resolutions as are indicated below:
Resolution Nos.

1. To	receive,	consider	and	adopt	the	Audited	Statement	of	Profit	and	Loss,	Cash	Flow	Statement	for	the	year	ended	31st March, 
2015 and Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2015, Auditors’ Report thereon and Directors’ Report along with Management 
Discussion & Analysis Report and Report on Corporate Governance for the year ended 31st March, 2015.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Amritanshu Khaitan (holding DIN : 00213413), who retires by rotation and being 
eligible, offers himself for reappointment.

3. To ratify the appointment of Statutory Auditors – M/s. Deloitte Haskins & Sells, Chartered Accountants (Firm’s Registration 
no. : 117364W) upto the conclusion of next Annual General Meeting.

4. Appointment of Mr. Aditya Khaitan as Director, liable to retire by rotation.

5. Appointment of Mrs. Priya Saran Chaudhri as director liable to  retire by rotation.

6. Waiver of Recovery of excess remuneration paid to Managing  Director during 2014 – 15.

7. Authorisation for payment of remuneration to Managing Director exceeding the limit for remuneration allowed u/s 197 of 
The Companies Act, 2013.

8. Ratification	of	remuneration	of	Cost	Auditor.

Signed this............... day .................................................. of 2015

Signature of Shareholder(s) ...............................................................  Affix	
Revenue 
stamp

 

Signature of Proxy holder(s) ............................................................. 

Notes:

1.		This	form	of	proxy	In	order	to	be	effective	should	be	duly	completed	and	deposited	at	the	Registered	Office	of	the	Company	
at Four Mangoe Lane, Surendra Mohan Ghosh Sarani, Kolkata-700001, not later than 48 hours before commencement of the 
Meeting.

2. For the Resolutions, Explanatory Statement and Notes, please refer to the Notice of the 27th Annual General Meeting.






